
 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Planning & City Development Committee 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Thursday 7th November, 2019 

   

Time: 
 

 7.00 pm 

   

Venue: 
 

 Rooms 18.01 & 18.03, 18th Floor, 64 Victoria Street, London, 
SW1E 6QP 

   

Members: 
 

 Councillors: 
 

 

  Melvyn Caplan (Chairman) 
Geoff Barraclough 
David Boothroyd 
Peter Freeman 
Jim Glen 
Elizabeth Hitchcock 

 

Louise Hyams 
Matt Noble 
Robert Rigby 
Tim Roca 
James Spencer 
Eoghain Murphy 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda 
 
Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the 
ground floor reception at City Hall.  If you have a disability 
and require any special assistance please contact the 
Committee Officer (details listed below) in advance of the 
meeting. 
 

   

T
 

 An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  If you require 
any further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Georgina Wills, Committee and Governance Officer. 
 
Tel: 0207 7641 7513; email: gwills@westminster.gov.uk 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Head of Committee and Governance Services in advance of the meeting please. 
 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To report any changes to the membership. 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive and record declarations of interest. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES (Pages 5 - 12) 

 To sign the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record of 
proceedings. 
 

 

4.   UPDATE ON THE PLANNING REVIEW (Pages 13 - 48) 

 Report of the Director of Place Shaping and Town Planning. 
 

 

5.   REVISED GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS MAKING PLANNING 
DECISIONS 

(Pages 49 - 86) 

 Report of the Director of Place Shaping and Town Planning 
 

 

6.   DRAFT LONDON PLAN UPDATE (Pages 87 - 94) 

 Report of the Director of Place Shaping and Town Planning 
 

 

7.   ESTABLISHMENT OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS SUB-
COMMITTEE (3) 

(Pages 95 - 
100) 

 Report of the Head of Committee and Governance Services 
 

 

8.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN 
CONSIDERS URGENT 

 

  Code of Conduct  
 

 

 
 
 



 
 

 

Stuart Love  
Chief Executive  
30 October 2019 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
1 

 

 

 
CITY OF WESTMINSTER 

 
 

MINUTES 

 
 

Planning & City Development Committee  
 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Planning & City Development Committee held on 
Thursday 20th June, 2019, Rooms 18.01 & 18.03, 18th Floor, 64 Victoria Street, 
London, SW1E 6QP. 
 
Members Present: Councillors Gotz Mohindra (Chairman), Geoff Barraclough, 
David Boothroyd, Tony Devenish, Peter Freeman, Murad Gassanly, Jim Glen, 
Elizabeth Hitchcock, Louise Hyams, Matt Noble, Robert Rigby, Tim Roca and  
James Spencer  
 
Also Present: Councillor Richard Beddoe (Cabinet Member for Place Shaping and 
Planning)  
 
 
1 MEMBERSHIP 
 
1.1 An apology for absence was received from Councillor Eoghain Murphy.  
 
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
2.1 Cllr David Boothroyd declared that he was Head of Research and Psephology 
 for Thorncliffe, whose clients were companies applying for planning 
 permission from various local authorities. No current schemes were in 
 Westminster; if there were he would be precluded from working on them 
 under the company’s code of conduct. 
 
2.2  Councillors raised a question about being members of Neighbourhood 

Forums and were advised by the Legal Officer that they should refrain from 
joining these bodies as their membership may lead to a conflict of interest.  

 
3 MINUTES 
 

Resolved: 
 
3.1 That the Minutes of the Planning and City Development Committee meeting 

held on 17 January 2019 be approved. 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 
2 

 

4 UPDATE ON THE PLANNING REVIEW 
 
4.1 The Committee received a report from the Executive Director of Growth  

Planning and Housing and Director of Place Shaping and Town Planning 
providing an update on the Planning Review Programme of work to deliver 
improvements to the processes and practices of the planning services to 
address the findings of the review carried out by the Planning Advisory 
Service (PAS), which were endorsed by Cabinet on 25 October 2018. Cabinet 
had approved the direction of travel of the planning service, to make the 
service more proactive, transparent and focused on the delivery of the 
Council’s City for All vision and other corporate priorities.  

 
4.2 Members held discussions on the key recommendations identified in the PAS 

Report. These included: - 
 
4.2.1 Public Speaking at Planning Applications Sub-Committees. 

 

 The Committee noted that public speaking had been introduced at 
Planning Sub-Committees in February 2019 and that a formal review of 
the procedures would be undertaken six months after its introduction. 
There had been several requests to speak at Planning Sub-Committee 
since February 2019 and the need for arbitration to determine who 
could make verbal representations had not arisen. Nevertheless, it was 
recognised that the procedures for public speaking needed to be 
embedded and fully tested. A report which provided a detailed analysis 
of public speaking at the Planning Sub-Committees will be presented at 
the next Committee.  
 

 Members commented that the procedures and guidance for making 
verbal representations at the Planning Sub-Committees were effective. 
The Committee noted that the Major Sub-Committee had considered a 
Planning Application for Dolphin Square and highlighted that the 
application was contentious and had generated a large interest. The 
Committee was pleased to note that all interested parties were aware 
of the process for making verbal representations at the Planning Sub-
Committee.  

 

 Members noted that there were speaking slots for both Ward 
Councillors and Amenity Societies. The Committee agreed that 
speakers should be advised to fully utilise their allocated speaking time 
and be provided information and encouraged to read the guidance on 
what topics are considered by the Sub-Committee. This information 
should be provided prior to the meeting. Members advised that 
residents were satisfied that they were involved in the planning process 
and able to verbally address the Planning Sub-Committees.  

4.2.2 The Committee noted that live recording and streaming of Planning 
Applications Sub-Committee meetings was to be introduced as soon as 
technically possible.  

 

Page 6



 
3 

 

4.3 Pre-application Community and Member Engagement  

4.3.1 Members were advised that the development of the pre-application and 
community and member engagement scheme were still in the preliminary 
stages and that consideration was being made on how all interested parties 
were to be involved. These included ensuring that the process adopted was 
equitable and encouraged consensus. There were also discussions about the 
guidelines and the importance of these procedures clearly setting out the 
purpose of this scheme and ensuring that the process was easily understood. 
The Sub-Committee were advised that officers had reviewed models in other 
Local Authorities and these exercises had been productive and informative.   

4.3.2 Members noted that the Pre-application Community and Member 
Engagement scheme would increase the interaction between officers and 
councillors. The Sub-Committee was advised that there were various models 
being considered which would enable interested parties to engage with 
Members. The Cabinet Member and the Chair were to be consulted about the 
proposed models.  

4.4 Achieving Closer Alignment and Developing Relations with other Services and 
Directorates. 

4.4.1 Member’s noted that the PAS report encouraged closer alignment between 
development management officers and other departments and teams and 
raised questions on how other Service Areas such as Housing, Public 
Protection and Licensing fitted under these proposals. The Committee was 
advised that there was already collaborative working between departments, 
and this was to continue. This was also necessary to ensure that the 
objectives of the Westminster City Plan were met.  

4.5 Enhancing Transparency and Maintaining Probity 

4.5.1 Members were informed that the ‘Guidance for Members Making Planning 
Decisions’ document had been updated to reflect changes in the Town and 
County Planning Legislation, Regulations, Council Policies and Procedures. 
The Guidance also included a segment on ‘Good Practise In Planning’, advice 
for ‘Site Visits’ and also the Nolan Principles.   

 
4.5.2 Members noted that the Guidance included a section on ‘Bias and 

Predetermination’ and commented on the difficulties in demonstrating that 
‘they had followed a consistently fair approach between all parties when 
considering a case’. The Committee agreed that the above concerns would be 
negated if it was demonstrated that a ‘fair process’ was followed when 
considering the planning applications and in the verbal exchanges between 
parties during the sub-committees.  The Committee recommended that a 
section on ‘do’s and don’ts at Planning Sub-Committees should be included in 
the Guide.  

 
4.5.3 Members held a short discussion on pre-determination and pre-disposition 

and noted that the former was undesirable. The Committee noted that a 
separate training session on the Code of Conduct would be arranged for the 
Planning Sub-Committee Members.  

Page 7



 
4 

 

 
4.5.4 The Legal Officer advised that all gifts and hospitalities needed to be declared 

and that timelines did not apply in these areas. Members agreed that a 
segment should be included in the Guidance about the requirements to 
declare gifts and hospitalities which had been received both prior and after 
decisions of planning sub-committees.    

 
4.5.5 The Draft Guidance for Members Making Planning Decisions’ would be 

considered at the Standards Committee. The recommendations of the 
Standard’s Committee would be incorporated into the final document. The 
Sub-Committee was advised that the Guidance was fit for purpose and would 
ensure that the objectives of the Planning Review were met.  

 
4.6 Recruitment and Retention: 

4.6.1 Members noted that officers’ roles would be enhanced following the proposed 
changes under the new Delegated Authority scheme and raised questions on 
whether junior officers would be affected under the revised scheme. Officers 
confirmed that the junior officer’s roles would be altered, and that senior staff 
would provide support. Members noted that there would be a working cultural 
shift and acknowledged the importance of ensuring that the appropriate 
officers were placed in suitable areas under the Delegated Authority scheme 
before the new work structure became embedded.   

4.7 Members commended Officers for the introduction and implementation of 
public speaking at planning sub-committees and for ensuring that Members 
engagement with interested parties were undertaken in a transparent way. 
The Committee agreed that the above mentioned encouraged better decision-
making at planning applications.  

 
Resolved: 
 
1. That the contents of the report and the ongoing work to implement measures to 

address the findings of the PAS report as part of the wider Planning Review 
programme be noted. 
 

2. That the draft Guidance for Members – Making Planning Decisions subject to the 
incorporation of views and advice of the Standards Committee at their meeting on 
11th July 2019 be approved, and agreed to delegate publication of the final 
version to the Director of Place Shaping and Town Planning, following 
consultation with the Director of Law and Chair of the Planning and City 
Development Committee. 

 
5 PLANNING APPEALS 2018-2019 
 
5.1 The Committee received a report from the Director of Place Shaping and 

Town Planning providing a background to the appeals process and a 
summary of appeal decisions in Westminster made by the Planning 
Inspectorate (on behalf of the Secretary of State) for the last financial year 
from 1 April 2018 to 1 April 2019. The report was prepared to provide an 
overview of the appeals process and performance and to consider whether 

Page 8



 
5 

 

any conclusion could be drawn on how future appeals performance could be 
improved, particularly in terms of reducing the risk of costs being awarded 
against the council. 

 
5.2 During the financial year between 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019, 191 

appeal decisions were received from the Planning Inspectorate. Of these 
figures, the Council decisions were upheld in full or in part for 69% of these 
cases. Our key performance indicator had a target to win 60% of all appeals. 
Members welcomed that most of the Council’s planning decisions were 
upheld and noted that statistics indicated that the quality of decision-making 
was very good.   

 
5.3 The Committee were reminded they were currently working within the current 

Westminster City Plan framework and that a new Plan was currently being 
finalised. The statistics were based on the current framework. Officers 
advised that more appeals may be generated in the transitional period during 
the implementation of the new Plan.  

 
5.4 The Committee noted that the minutes of a Planning Sub-committee were 

referred to in one of the Appeals and were advised that these documents 
needed to be robust. Officers advised that the contents of minutes would be 
reviewed if required.  

 
5.5 The Legal Officer informed Members that reasons for refusing planning 

applications needed to be clear and fully stated. The Committee agreed that 
applications which were refused by Officers and the Sub-Committee that were 
granted on Appeal should be detailed in future Reports.   

 
5.6 The Committee was advised that the Council could incur costs if it was 

deemed by Planning Inspectors that the Planning Sub-Committee had acted 
in an unreasonable manner.  The Committee requested that the Appeals 
during the previous two years that were upheld and had a cost implication be 
included in the Annual Report. 

 
Resolved:  
 

1. That the contents and conclusion of the report be noted. 
 

2. That the Sub-Committee be provided an Annual Report on Planning 
Applications Appeals. 
 

3. That the Annual Report on Planning Application Appeals included a summary 
on the Appeals that were upheld. 

  
4. That the Chair of the relevant Planning Applications Sub-Committee, Chair of 

the Planning And City Development Committee and Ward Councillors be 
notified when an Appeal of a Planning Applications had been upheld.  

 
 
 
 

Page 9



 
6 

 

 
6 ANNUAL UPDATE ON PLANNING APPLICATION PERFORMANCE 
 
6.1 The Committee received a report from the Director of Place Shaping and 

Town Planning providing an annual update on the performance of the Place 
Shaping and Town Planning Department in terms of the timeliness and quality 
of its decision making in respect to Planning Applications.   

 
6.2 For the period from April 2018 to March 2019 the City Council met and 

exceeded the MHCLG performance thresholds for both Major and Non-Major 
applications. The Major Applications threshold was exceeded by 27%, whilst 
the Non-Major applications threshold was exceeded by 9%. Coupled with 
similar performance for the preceding 2017/ 2018 financial year, the City 
Council was not at risk of designation in respect of the speed of its decision 
making. 

 
6.3 The Committee welcomed the statistics and strong performance of the 

Planning Services. It was requested that statistics be provided on how 
Westminster City Council compared to other London Boroughs in terms of 
timeliness and quality of decision making in respect to Planning Applications 

 
Resolved:   
 

1. That the contents of the report and the ongoing good performance of the 
Place Shaping and Town Planning department in terms of its performance in 
the determination of planning applications be noted. 
 

2. That future Reports on the Annual Update on Planning Applications 
Performance include information on how Westminster City Council compared 
with other London Local Authorities in relation to timeliness and quality of 
decision making in respect to Planning Applications. 

 
7 WESTMINSTER'S CITY PLAN REGULATION 19 
 
7.1 The Committee received a verbal update from Councillor Richard Beddoe on 

Regulation 19 version of the City Plan. Members were advised that the formal 
consultation had started and would continue for six weeks. Members were 
also provided with an outline of the timetable for consultation and adoption of 
the City Plan. There were three key areas in the City Plan and this included 
more homes, height policy and Green City.  

 
7.2 Members held a brief discussion about the City Plan and queried whether 

there would be an opportunity for the New Plan to be discussed and 
scrutinised by all Councillors in a formal setting. The Sub-Committee was 
advised that there had been extensive consultation with the new City Plan and 
that all relevant legislations had been adhered to.  

 
7.3 Members requested that a briefing note be circulated to the Committee about 

the formal process for consultation and adopting the City Plan.  
 

Page 10



 
7 

 

7.4 The Chair thanked Councillor Richard Beddoe for his presentation and 
attendance to the Meeting.   

 
Resolved:  
 
That a Briefing Note on the decision-making process for formal adoption of the 
regulation 19 City Plan Consultation be circulated to the Planning & City 
Development Committee. 
 
8 ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
8.1 The Committee were informed that it was to receive refresher training every 

six months and this would be scheduled before their meeting.  Members 
noted that the training sessions would cover areas such as ‘making good 
planning decisions and commented that amenities related themes such as 
light loss and noise nuisance should be included. The Committee noted that 
the mentioned areas were topical at Planning Sub-Committee and training on 
these areas should be prioritised. 

 
 
The Meeting ended at 7.55 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIRMAN:   DATE  

 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

 
Planning & City Development Committee 

Date: 7 November 2019 
  
Classification: General Release 
  
Title: Update on the Planning Review 
  
Report of: Director of Place Shaping and Town Planning 
  
Financial Summary: The implications will be managed within existing 
resources. 
  
Report Author and Contact Details: Oliver Gibson (ogibson@westminster.gov.uk/ 020 7641 
2680) 
 
 
1.  Executive Summary  
  
1.1 This report presents an update on the Planning Review programme of work to deliver 

improvements to the processes and practices of the planning service to address the 
findings of the review carried out by the Planning Advisory Service (PAS), which 
informed the recommendations that made to Cabinet on 25 October 2018, and which 
the Cabinet resolved to endorse. Progress on the implementation of the Planning 
Review programme was previously reported to the Planning and City Development 
Committee on 20 June 2019 (see Appendix 4).  

 
1.2 This report provides a 6-month review of public speaking at Planning Applications Sub-

Committees, advises on the imminent introduction of live streaming of Sub-Committee 
meetings and sets out the options currently being explored to facilitate early pre-
application community and Member engagement.  

 
1.3 The introduction of public speaking at Planning Applications Sub-Committees has been 

a success that has significantly enhanced the transparency and accessibility of the 
Sub-Committee process for planning application decision making. The review of the 
initial 8-month period of public speaking identifies an overwhelmingly positive overall 
satisfaction with the process from those speaking at Sub-Committee meetings with only 
isolated concerns expressed. Recommendations to make limited amendments to the 
current Planning Applications Sub-Committee Procedure Rules (January 2019), to 
enhance the overall operation of the public speaking process, are made in Section 4. 

 
1.4 Live streaming of Sub-Committee meetings is to be introduced to further enhance the 

accessibility and transparency of planning decision making i. The equipment to 
facilitate live streaming of Planning Sub-Committee meetings, which will also be used 
for other public meetings in due course, was installed in early September 2019. The 
Council has procured the ‘CIVICO’ system, which provides a single online platform for 
the end to end process of recording, editing and web hosting the recorded content. The 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



 

system is now undergoing a period of testing prior to the commencement of live 
streaming. 

 
1.5 To facilitate the involvement of residents and Ward Councillors at an earlier stage in 

the planning process, options are currently being explored to introduce an Early 
Engagement Forum (EEF), which would be facilitated and chaired by officers and 
would allow developers to present their schemes to local stakeholders and Ward 
Councillors in an independent setting, where all parties involved in the planning process 
would be engaged simultaneously. The forums would occur at the very earliest stage 
in the pre-application process. This would enhance pre-application community 
engagement on large and strategic scale schemes, which is currently wholly reliant on 
developer led pre-application engagement, which can misrepresent the views of local 
stakeholders and lack genuine engagement with communities. 

 
2.  Recommendation  
  
2.1 Members are asked to agree the recommendations of the 6-month review of public 

speaking and note the ongoing work on Planning Review programme to implement 
measures pursuant to the recommendations endorsed by Cabinet in 2018 to make the 
planning service more proactive, transparent and focused on the delivery of shared 
strategic and corporate objectives. 

  
3.        Background  
  
3.1  The Planning Review programme comprises a programme of work to deliver 

improvements to the processes and practices of the planning service to address the 
findings of the review carried out by the Planning Advisory Service (PAS), which 
informed the recommendations that made by the Chief Executive to Cabinet on 25 
October 2018, which the Cabinet resolved to endorse. The recommended changes to 
the planning service are designed to make the planning service more proactive, 
transparent and focused on the delivery of the Council’s City for All vision and other 
corporate priorities. The recommendations include measures to make it easier for 
residents to engage with the planning process in Westminster.  

  
3.2  In summary the recommendations endorsed by Cabinet in October 2018 that the 

Planning Review Programme is seeking to respond to and implement positive change 
in light of were: 

 
1. To record, and make available post meeting, coverage of Planning Applications 

Sub-Committee meetings. 
2. To live stream Planning Applications Sub-Committee meetings. 
3. Introduce public speaking rights at Planning Applications Sub-Committee 

meetings. 
4. Review digital content on the planning process and planning decisions and 

improve accessibility to the general public. 
5. Improve the way planning policies and decisions are explained to make them 

easier to understand. 
6. Support resident and Ward Councillor participation at an earlier stage in the 

process, for example at pre-application stage of major applications. 
7. Increase delegation and review call in procedures to empower officers to take 

more delegated decisions. 
8. To restate to officers and Members their responsibilities in terms of the Council’s 

gifts and hospitality policies. 

Page 14



 

9. To restate to officers and elected Members involved in the planning process that 
they must retain a distance from land owners, applicants, agents and community 
stakeholders other than at formally arranged visits and meetings. 

10. Create a new Place Shaping and Town Planning directorate. 
 
3.3 This report provides a 6-month review of public speaking at Planning Applications Sub-

Committees (3 above), advises on the imminent introduction of live streaming of Sub-
Committee meetings (1 and 2 above) and sets out the options currently being explored 
to facilitate pre-application community and Member engagement (6 above).  

 
3.4 In terms of the other recommendations endorsed by Cabinet, a new Place Shaping and 

Town Planning directorate was created in late 2018 (point 10) and the responsibility of 
officers and Members to retain distant from participants in the planning process and 
refrain from hospitality has been reiterated (points 8 and 9), with the expectations set 
by gifts and hospitality policy set out more clearly in an updated ‘Guidance for Members 
Making Planning Decisions’ document, which was agreed by the Standards Committee 
in July 2019 (see also a separate report on this updated guidance on this agenda). 
Work on points 4 and 5 above, to review online planning content and consider how 
planning policies and decisions are explained is ongoing. It should be noted that the 
introduction of the draft new City Plan in 2020 will simplify the development plan for 
Westminster, consolidating all local planning policies into a single document written 
less technical and more accessible language. Work to examine options to widen 
delegated powers among officers is ongoing pursuant to point 7. 

 
4.  Considerations  
 
Review of Public Speaking at Planning Applications Sub-Committees 
 
 4.1 In January the Committee resolved to agree the proposed procedures and protocols to 

allow for members of the public to make verbal representations at the Sub-Committee 
meetings. Public speaking was subsequently introduced at the Planning Applications 
Sub-Committee on 26 February 2019. The agreed procedures require speakers to 
register in advance on the Council’s website if they wish to speak and the number of 
speakers for and against is limited at each committee meeting with each speaker 
limited to no more than 3 minutes (see ‘Planning Applications Sub-Committee 
Procedure Rules (January 2019)’ in Appendix 1). It was agreed at the Planning and 
City Development Committee in January 2019 that a 6-month review of public speaking 
would be undertaken, which would include recommendations for improvements to the 
process for public speaking at Planning Applications Sub-Committee meetings. The 
following paragraphs set out the 6-month review of public speaking. 

 
4.2 Table 1 below set out the usage of public speaking by supporters, objectors and other 

interested parties since the introduction of the right to speak in February 2019. The 
data in Table 1 covers the period up to and including the Planning (Major) Applications 
Sub-Committee on 24 September 2019. In that period 26 Sub-Committee meetings 
have been held. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 

Table 1 – Numbers of Public Speakers between 25 February and 24 September 
2019. 
 

  

No. of 
Applications 
on Agendas 

No. of 
Applications 

with 
Registered 
Speakers 

No. of 
Speakers 

Supporting 

No. of 
Speakers 
Objecting 

No. of 
Amenity 
Societies 

No. of 
Ward 

Councillors 

Total No. 
of 

Speakers 

Totals 130 105 80 46 7 13 128 

Average 5.00 4.04 3.08 1.77 0.27 0.50 4.92 

 
4.3 Table 1 demonstrates that the opportunity to address Planning Applications Sub-

Committees has been widely embraced by both supporters and objectors alike, 
affirming that introducing public speaking, which has afforded greater and transparency 
to the planning decision making process, was a positive one. There is typically at least 
one speaker for each application included on a Sub-Committee agenda. 

 
4.4 All those registering to speak have been asked to provide feedback on their experience 

of the registration process and of speaking at the Sub-Committee meeting itself. To 
date 19 responses have been received. 89% of respondents agreed or strongly agreed 
that registering to speak at the Planning Applications Sub-Committee was easy to do. 
Shortly after the introduction of public speaking it was identified that it was possible for 
those wishing to address the Sub-Committee could inadvertently register to address 
the Sub-Committee on the wrong date. This issue was resolved by amendment of the 
information included in the online form and there have been no similar issues with the 
registration process since. The results of the survey indicate that those engaging in 
public speaking have overwhelming found the registration process to be easy to 
engage with. As such, no further amendment of the registration process is 
recommended. 

 
4.5 The most common issue arising prior to Sub-Committee meeting is complaints arising 

where individuals have not taken action to register themselves in time despite the 
advice provided in letters/ emails sent out advising of the impending Sub-Committee 
meeting (all public speakers must register by midday on the Friday prior to the Sub-
Committee meeting). The procedures do though already allow for the Chairman to 
exercise discretion where an individual is late registering. This discretion has been 
used in limited circumstances to date, where the delay in registering has been 
demonstrated to be for legitimate reasons. It is recommended that this continues to be 
used only in the most exceptional circumstances to ensure the fair and equitable 
administration of the Sub-Committee meetings. Accordingly, no amendments are 
recommended to the time by which they must be registered. 

 
4.6 To date there has not been a need for a ballot to decide upon the speakers for a 

particular item. Typically, residents and other objectors organise themselves into 
representative groups when opposing developments and this has ensured that where 
there have been high volumes of objection to a scheme, there have always been less 
than the maximum permitted number of speakers. Given this aspect of the public 
speaking procedures has yet to be utilised, it is recommended that it is kept under 
review at the present time. However, it is clear that for the vast majority of development 
proposals coming before the Sub-Committees, the current maximum quantum of 
speakers is set at an appropriate number. However, it is recommended that the 
Planning Applications Sub-Committee Procedure Rules are amended to afford the 
Chairman discretion in rare cases where the development before the Sub-Committee 
is of such strategic importance and of exceptionally high public interest value that a 
higher number of public speakers would be appropriate to maintain the fairness of 
access to the Sub-Committee meeting for objectors and supporters alike. No concerns 

Page 16



 

have been expressed regarding the order of public speakers and it is recommended 
that the current order of public speakers is therefore maintained. 
 

4.7 The current procedures allow recognised or semi recognised amenity societies their 
own speaking ‘slot’ on each item. In practice this right is rarely used with only 7 persons 
addressing Sub-Committees on behalf of an amenity society since 26 February, during 
which time 130 applications have been considered. However, it is recommended that 
this right to speak in a separate ‘slot’ to other objectors or supporters is extended to 
registered Neighbourhood Forums, which often represent significant numbers of 
residents and businesses in the areas of the City that they cover. 

 
4.8 The survey data collected from public speakers (see Table 2) demonstrates that to date 

public speakers have overwhelmingly found the Sub-Committees to be highly 
competent, clear and transparent decision making panels. 90% respondents agreed or 
strongly agreed that they had been made to feel welcome by the Sub-Committee. The 
same significant majority agreed or strongly agreed that they were satisfied with the 
quality of the Sub-Committee chairman. 74% of respondents agreed or strongly agreed 
that they felt their views had been taken seriously, whilst 79% of respondents agreed 
or strongly agreed that the Sub-Committee process was clear and transparent. The 
lowest approval rating was in answer to whether public speakers felt that they had been 
part of the decision making process, to which 63% agreed or strongly agreed. 
Measures such as affording speakers (supporters, objectors, Ward Councillors and 
others) more time to speak or allowing speakers to be questioned could be considered 
in order that they may feel more engaged as part of the decision making process. 
However, such measures would need to be balanced against the need to avoid Sub-
Committee meetings becoming overly long or allowing disproportionate weight being 
attributed to speakers that have been given longer to address the Sub-Committee. 
Having regard to these considerations it is recommended that the length of time given 
to public speakers and the format within which they speak (i.e. without questions being 
asked of them) should remain as set out in the current procedure rules. 

 
 Table 2 – Public Speakers views on the Planning Applications Sub-Committees. 
 

 Strongly 
Agree 

Agree Neither 
Agree or 
Disagree 

Disagree Strongly 
Disagree 

Response 
Total 

I felt welcome at the 
planning committee 
meeting 

42.1% 
(8) 

47.4% 
(9) 

0.0% 
(0) 

5.3% 
(1) 

5.3% 
(1) 

19 

I felt satisfied with the 
quality of the Chair 

42.1% 
(8) 

47.4% 
(9) 

5.3% 
(1) 

0.0% 
(0) 

5.3% 
(1) 

19 

I felt that my views were 
taken seriously 

26.3% 
(5) 

47.4% 
(9) 

15.8% 
(3) 

5.3% 
(1) 

5.3% 
(1) 

19 

I felt part of the decision 
making process 

21.1% 
(4) 

42.1% 
(8) 

21.1% 
(4) 

5.3% 
(1) 

10.5% 
(2) 

19 

The planning committee 
process was clear and 
transparent 

26.3% 
(5) 

52.6% 
(10) 

10.5% 
(2) 

5.3% 
(1) 

5.3% 
(1) 

19 

 
4.9 The survey of public speakers includes the opportunity for respondents to provide 

additional comments. 12 of the 19 respondents provided comments, many of which 
relate to the specific circumstance of the application on which they were speaking. 
However, of the 12 respondents four commented that a visible clock or timer should be 
provided to enable speakers to gauge the time remaining for them to speak. Currently 
only a 30 second verbal warning is provided by the Committee Clerk. Given the 
consistency of this feedback across the survey responses it is recommended that a 
visible timer is introduced to assist public speakers.  

Page 17



 

 
4.10 Paragraph 1.2 of the current procedure rules specifies that ‘In the case of items which 

have previously been deferred by the Planning Applications Sub-Committee and where 
no new evidence is to be tabled, speakers will not be allowed to make further 
representations at Committee’. The current procedure is intended to avoid duplication 
of presentations to the Sub-Committee. However, there are circumstances that fall 
outside of the scope of the current wording where it may be reasonable, to ensure the 
decision making process is fully open and transparent, to allow supporters, objectors 
and other interested parties to speak again at the subsequent Sub-Committee meeting. 
For example, this could be the case where applications are deferred for a Sub-
Committee site visit or when an application is reported back to a Sub-Committee 
meeting after an unusually long period of time since the original deferral. In such 
circumstances, whilst no new evidence or material considerations will necessarily have 
been presented, it would be advantageous to the Sub-Committee, in terms of its 
understanding of the views of supporters and objectors, to hear their views again. It is 
therefore recommended that paragraph 1.2 of the procedure rules are amended to 
allow public speaking on applications that have previously been deferred, with previous 
speakers given priority in such circumstances before speaking slots are offered to new 
speakers. 

 
4.11 In summary, the procedure rules agreed at Planning and City Development Committee 

in January 2019 have operated efficiently and the evidence from the survey of public 
speakers demonstrates that the overwhelming majority of respondents found public 
speaking a positive experience, which enhanced their view of planning application 
decision making in Westminster and contributed to their perception that it is an open 
and transparent process. Despite this, the 6-month review identifies a small number of 
minor amendments to the procedure rules which would further enhance the overall 
public speaking process. These recommendations are: 

 
1. The Chairman should be given discretion in exceptional circumstances to allow 

a greater number of speakers to speak in relation to applications which are both 
of strategic importance and exceptionally high public interest value. 
 

2. Public speaking should be permitted on all previously deferred applications 

with previous speakers who have addressed the Sub-Committee on the same 

application given priority, prior to speaking slots being offered to new speakers. 

  

3. Neighbourhood Forums should be included with Amenity Societies as bodies 
that may receive a separate public speaking ‘slot’ on each item. 
 

4. A timer visibly displaying the remaining time for public speakers should be 
provided to assist those addressing the Sub-Committee. 
 

 
Live Streaming of Sub-Committee Meetings 
 
4.12 To further enhance the accessibility and transparency of the planning decision making 

process, live streaming of Sub-Committee meetings will be introduced. The equipment 
to facilitate live streaming was identified through market analysis and a procurement 
process as part of the Planning Review programme. The system provided by ‘CIVICO’ 
has been selected as it provides the most suitable functionality enabling the delivery of 
live streaming of Planning Applications Sub-Committee meetings, as well the streaming 
of other public Council meetings in future. CIVICO provide the same live streaming 
functionality to a significant number of other Council’s, including Birmingham City 

Page 18



 

Council and the London Borough of Croydon. The CIVICO system provides a single 
online platform for the end to end process of recording, editing and web hosting the 
recorded content. The video will be provided via the Council’s website via a webpage 
hosted by CIVICO but branded so that it appears as a seamless extension of the 
Council’s existing website. The webpage on which the live stream and previous 
recordings will be available will include links to all relevant Sub-Committee agenda 
papers, reports and minutes. 

 
4.13 The system has now been procured and the visual and audio equipment required to 

facilitate live streaming of Planning Sub-Committee meetings was installed in Rooms 
1, 2 and 3 on the 18th Floor of 64 Victoria Street in early September 2019. Six cameras 
have been installed in the committee room, along with new microphones that are 
compatible with the live streaming technology. 

 
4.14 The system is now undergoing a period of testing, with Planning Applications Sub-

Committees being recorded, but not live streamed, from 3 September onwards to allow 
the room set up and camera positioning to be optimised, whilst also allowing Members 
and officers to become familiar with the technology and additional roles and 
responsibilities they have during the meeting. 

 
4.15 The test recordings were reviewed at the Customer Digital Standards Board on 9 

September. The board recognised the impressive underlying performance and 
functionality of the technology but made recommendations that the appearance of the 
committee room be improved with branding material being placed within the image 
frame so that it is recognisably a Westminster meeting. Adjustments to the layout of 
the room have been made to respond to the Board’s recommendations and a large 
banner will be introduced behind the committee panel to alleviate views of windows 
and clutter in the background and introduce Westminster branding.  

 
4.16 Legal Services are currently finalising a guidance note and protocol that will restate the 

basis on which there is an existing expectation for officers, Members and third parties 
participating in public meetings to appear in any recordings being made. In this context, 
it should be noted that currently Planning Applications Sub-Committee meetings can 
be, and are regularly, filmed by persons in the public gallery. Any person present 
already has the right to record proceeding in this way under the Openness of Local 
Government Bodies Regulations 2014. The protocol being developed by Legal 
Services will include steps to be taken should Sub-Committee recordings be misused 
or misrepresented by third parties, particularly through online use on social media, so 
that the safety and/ or reputation of officers, Members or third parties is not harmed. 
The CIVICO system will allow users to share clips of Sub-Committee meetings on 
social media; however, this functionality ensures that the video continues to be hosted 
by the Council’s live streaming provider (CIVICO) and therefore this content could be 
removed across all social media platforms should it be misused or misrepresented by 
a particular third party. This functionality ensures the Council will have ultimate control 
over the use of the video content it publishes. 

 
4.17 Testing of the system is ongoing with live streaming to commence during the first 

quarter of 2020.. This will enable officers to become fully proficient at managing the 
additional back office processes that are required to manage the recording equipment 
before, during and after the Sub-Committee meetings. This lead in period will also 
ensure that measures to enhance the appearance of the committee room and finalise 
a protocol for persons appearing on the live stream will be in place prior to the ‘go live’ 
date. The recordings of Planning Applications Sub-Committee meetings made during 
the testing phase may be published on the website following the ‘go live’ date to provide 
full public access to those meetings that have been recorded. 

Page 19



 

 
Pre-application Community and Ward Member Engagement   
  
4.18 The Planning Review programme team are in the final stages of options analysis 

looking at the ways in which earlier engagement with local community stakeholders 
and Ward Members can be achieved. The preferred operating model is to introduce an 
Early Engagement Forum (EEF). An EEF would be arranged at the very earliest stage 
of the pre-application process, typically following first receipt of a major or strategic 
scale pre-application request of appropriate scale. Officers would advise the pre-
applicant of the requirement to undertake this procedure to ensure local community 
and Ward Councillor engagement and the cost of running the EEF would be obtained 
from the pre-applicant via an additional fee that will be included in an updated pre-
application fees schedule.  

 
4.19 An EEF would comprise a forum event facilitated and chaired by officers and would 

allow developers to present their schemes to local stakeholders and Ward Councillors 
in an independent setting. The feedback from local stakeholders and Ward Councillors 
and the questions asked of the developer would be minuted by the officer chairing the 
meeting and displayed on the City Council’s website. Additionally, the written feedback 
of officers to the developer would include a section discussing the views expressed 
during the EEF. By ensuring the forums occur at the very earliest stage in the pre-
application process it would help to alleviate the problems typically encountered with 
current developer led pre-application engagement, which can often result in 
misrepresentation of views expressed by local stakeholders, and which often occurs at 
the very end of the pre-application process at a stage when developers are not inclined 
to amend the scheme prior to the submission of a formal planning application. Holding 
EEFs at the earliest stage of the pre-application process will also enable officers to 
better understand local stakeholder concerns and aspirations and enable them to 
incorporate these into their own written advice where they amount to material planning 
considerations. 

 
4.20 Schemes suitable for the use of an EEF would need to be limited to larger major or 

strategic developments due to the resource implications they would entail. Work is 
ongoing to establish suitable thresholds for referring applications to an EEF using pre-
application data from previous years, with the aspiration to provide this service for up 
to circa 18-20 applications per year. It is likely though that the threshold that is chosen 
would need to be caveated to allow officer discretion to refer other major developments 
to an EEF where they are either known to be of significant local interest or are otherwise 
sites that have a high profile (e.g. sports stadia, transport interchanges, community 
buildings/ facilities etc.). 

 
4.21 The prospective invitees to EEFs are still to be finalised; however, local residents in the 

immediate vicinity of the site and Ward Councillors would be invited. A representative 
of the local amenity society and/ or forum would also be invited. Where a site is adjacent 
to a ward boundary Ward Councillors from the adjoining ward would be included.  

  
4.22 Currently pre-application discussions between developers and the City Council are 

confidential and pre-application engagement beyond discussions with officers are 
limited to discussion of schemes of strategic scale with the Cabinet Member and the 
Chairman of Planning. The intention would be to maintain this format for strategic 
member engagement and supplement it with the EEF procedure to introduce greater 
transparency and balance within the pre-application process in accordance with the 
October 2018 Cabinet recommendation.  

 

Page 20



 

4.23 The introduction of EEFs will necessitate a change in approach to community 
engagement for many developers, moving to a more genuinely collaborative and 
engaged approach to scheme development at pre-application stage. However, national 
policy in the NPPF supports this approach and notes that: “Early engagement has 
significant potential to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the planning 
application system for all parties. Good quality pre-application discussion enables 
better coordination between public and private resources and improved outcomes for 
the community” (paragraph 39). Examples of where similar early engagement 
procedures have been introduced, such as the LB Camden, LB Haringey and Epping 
Forest DC, indicate that developers of large major and strategic scale schemes are 
willing to engage with the suggested approach and understand the benefits that an 
EEF process can deliver in terms of understanding and addressing local concerns and 
aspirations at the earliest stage of scheme development so that delays can be avoided 
later in the planning application process. A detailed guidance note on EEFs will be 
provided on the Council’s website when EEFs are introduced so that developers are 
aware of both the process to be followed and the benefits that can be achieved for all 
parties.  

 
4.24 The recommended EEF approach to facilitating early engagement with local 

communities and Ward Members will be reported to the Cabinet Member for Place 
Shaping and Planning for approval before officers proceed with the implementation 
phase of EEFs. Assuming Cabinet Member approval, EEFs are expected to be 
introduced by April 2020. 

 
5.  Financial Implications  
  
5.1  The implications will be managed within existing resources. 
  
6.  Legal Implications  
  
6.1  None. 
  
7.  Conclusion  
  
7.1     Feedback on the initial period of public speaking at the Planning Applications Sub-

Committees demonstrates that the implementation of this enhancement of the Sub-
Committee process has been successful. Only minor recommendations are made to 
finesse the originally agreed public speaking protocol, as set out in paragraph 4.11 and 
the Committee is asked to support these recommendations. 

 
7.2 Work on Planning Review programme to implement measures pursuant to the 

recommendations endorsed by Cabinet in 2018 continue to be ongoing, but work has 
now been completed or is at an advanced stage on the majority of work streams that 
comprise the overall programme. The Committee is asked to note the progress that 
has been made to date on the Planning Review programme to enhance the planning 
service so that it may become more proactive, transparent and focused on the delivery 
of shared strategic and corporate objectives. 

  
 

 
If you have any questions about this report, or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers, please contact: Oliver Gibson 
(ogibson@westminster.gov.uk / 020 7641 2680). 
 

 

Page 21



 

Background Papers:  

1. Planning Applications Sub-Committee Procedure Rules dated January 2019 

(https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/planning_applications_sub_committee

_procedure_rules.pdf), 

2. Report to the Planning and City Development Committee dated 17 January 2019 

(https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/documents/s30523/PCD%20Committee%2017%

20January%202019.pdf).  

3. Minutes of Planning and City Development Committee dated 17 January 2019 

(https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/documents/s32912/Minutes%20-

%2017%20January%202019.pdf). 

4. Report to the Planning and City Development Committee dated 20 June 2019 

https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=368&MId=4989&Ver=

4 

 

 

Page 22

https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/planning_applications_sub_committee_procedure_rules.pdf
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/planning_applications_sub_committee_procedure_rules.pdf
https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/documents/s30523/PCD%20Committee%2017%20January%202019.pdf
https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/documents/s30523/PCD%20Committee%2017%20January%202019.pdf
https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/documents/s32912/Minutes%20-%2017%20January%202019.pdf
https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/documents/s32912/Minutes%20-%2017%20January%202019.pdf
https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=368&MId=4989&Ver=4
https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=368&MId=4989&Ver=4


Draft January 2019   

APPENDIX 1  

   
PLANNING APPLICATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE  

PROCEDURE RULES  
  

1.0 General   

  

1.1 These procedure rules govern the conduct of all cases reported to the Planning 

Applications Sub-Committees, including applications for planning permission; listed building 

consent; advertisement consent, consultations for development proposals by other public 

bodies; enforcement cases; certificates of lawfulness; prior approvals, tree preservation orders 

and other related cases.   

  

1.2 In the case of items which have previously been deferred by the Planning Applications Sub-

Committee and where no new evidence is to be tabled, speakers will not be allowed to make 

further representations at Committee.  

  

PROCEDURE PRIOR TO THE MEETING   

  

2.0 Registration to Speak   

  

2.1  Members of the public who wish to make representations to the Committee must register 

to speak by noon on the Friday (or two working days where the meeting is held on a different 

day) immediately prior to the meeting. This applies to those wishing to speak against the 

application, the applicant who may wish to speak in support of their application, other persons 

wishing to speak in support of the application and a representative of the local Recognised or 

Semi-Recognised Amenity Society. Ward Councillors and /or Members of Parliament who wish 

to speak on an item are advised to adhere to the same deadline. The maximum number of 

speakers on each item is limited as follows:   

  

o Planning (Major) Applications Sub-Committees: a maximum of two 

speakers in support of the application (with one of these slots reserved for the 

applicant or their nominated spokesperson) and two against. In addition, there 

be a separate slot for the recognised and/or semi-recognised amenity society 

and a further slot for the relevant Ward Councillors should they wish to speak.  

  

o Planning Applications Sub-Committees 1, 2 and 3: a maximum of one 

speaker in support (normally the applicant or their nominated spokesperson) 

and one speaker against. In addition, there be a separate slot for the recognised 

and/or semi-recognised amenity society and a further slot for the relevant Ward 

Councillors should they wish to speak.   

  

2.2 If the number of requests to speak either in support or against the application 

exceeds the number of public speaking slots outlined above, potential speakers will be 

encouraged to discuss in advance of the meeting whether they wish to either nominate 

a speaker who will make a verbal representation on their common behalf or to share 

the total time allocated to speakers making representations either for or against the 

application, as the case may be. The Committee and Governance Services Team will 

contact the relevant parties on the Friday afternoon immediately after the registration 

deadline and seek their agreement for their contact details to be shared with the other 

Page 23



Draft January 2019   

parties in advance of the meeting (this agreement is necessary in order to avoid 

concerns regarding data protection). The nomination of the spokesperson or 

clarification that the time will be shared between the speakers would need to be 

received by the Committee and Governance Services Team by the following Monday 

at noon (i.e. the day immediately before the Committee meeting). Where agreement 

cannot be reached between the parties on a nominated spokesperson (for example 

where objectors have different concerns) or for the time to be shared; it is proposed 

that the Chairman, in conjunction with the Presiding Officer, may choose to agree to a 

random selection process (a ballot) to determine who will speak.   

  

2.3 The Council’s Committee and Governance Services Team will notify those 

parties who are eligible to speak and notify the other interested parties that they will 

not be permitted to speak however they can attend the meeting to hear the discussion. 

Interested parties may also wish to contact their Ward Councillors and request that they 

make representations on their behalf however if such requests by Ward Councillors are 

made after the Friday deadline they will need to be submitted directly to the Chairman 

for agreement. Committee and Governance Services will provide the final list of 

speakers to the Committee Chairman and presiding officer by close of business on 

Monday (the day immediately before Committee).  

  

2.4 The period for registration of interest in speaking will only commence after the 

case has been listed on a Committee agenda, published online (i.e. any requests to 

speak included in a written representation on the application or direct contact with 

officers or Members will not override the formal registration process). The case will not 

be deferred to another Committee date if an interested party is not available to speak 

at the Committee meeting however they may ask a representative to speak on their 

behalf if appropriate.    

  

3.0 Documents & Written Representations   

  

3.1 Written representations received prior to the completion of the committee report will be 

referred to within the report. Representations received after the report is published will be 

reported verbally to the Planning Applications Sub-Committee, with copies of the 

representations sent to the Committee Members at close of business on the Thursday 

immediately prior to the Committee meeting where received by the planning case officer by 

2pm that day and copies of any further representations received by the planning case officer 

after this time but in advance of the meeting will be presented to the Committee Members at 

the meeting.   

  

3.2 Registered speakers (including the applicant), the Recognised or Semi-Recognised 

Amenity Society and Ward Councillors may only make verbal representations. No further 

written representations may be presented at the meeting and it will not be possible to use visual 

presentations to show photographs, drawings or other materials.    

  

PROCEDURE DURING THE MEETING   

  

4.0 Chairman’s introduction   

  

4.1 The Chairman will introduce the officers and Committee Members. The meeting shall only 

take place if it is quorate(i).   

  

5.0 Agenda Order   

  

Page 24



Draft January 2019   

5.1 Agenda items will be heard in accordance with the order advertised on the agenda, 

however the Chairman will normally request that the agenda order be altered where interested 

persons/organisations have registered to make verbal representations on an application.   

  

6.0 Apologies   

  

6.1 The Chairman will report any apologies received or substitutions made to the Committee 

membership(ii).   

  

7.0 Declarations   

7.1  The Chairman will ask the Committee Members and any visiting Ward Councillors whether 

they have any interests to declare in accordance with the Code of Conduct. Members will state 

clearly the nature of any interest and whether the interest is ‘personal’, or ‘personal and 

prejudicial’. Committee Members with prejudicial interests will be required to leave the room 

for the duration of the relevant item, though they may make representations to the Committee 

before leaving the room.   

  

8.0 Minutes   

  

8.1  The Chairman will ask the Committee whether the minutes of the previous meeting can be 

signed as a correct record of proceedings(iii).   

  

9.0 Officer’s Presentation   

  

9.1 At the beginning of each substantive item, the planning officer will provide a brief 

introduction to the case using drawings, photographs and other documentation as may be 

necessary, summarise the key issues for consideration and refer the Committee to any late 

amendments to the report.   

  

10.0 Representations   

  

10.1  The Chairman will invite those registered to make representations to the Committee to 

speak. Those speaking in support of the application (namely the applicant followed by any 

other supporters) will be heard first, followed by those speaking against the application. The 

local recognised or semi-recognised Amenity Society will be asked to speak next and 

interested local Ward Councillors or Members of Parliament will be heard last.   

  

10.2  Each speaker will be allowed three minutes to make representations (except where the 

number of requests to speak either for or against the application exceeds the designated 

number of speaking slots and parties have agreed to share the maximum time allowed for 

speakers for or against the application), after which time they must then re-take their seat in 

the gallery. In the case of Ward Councillors, they may sit adjacent to the Committee). 

Representations must relate to material planning considerations, they must pertain to the item 

before the committee and in general no new issues beyond those raised in the written 

submissions already made in respect of the planning application should be raised.   

  

11.0  Officer’s response   

  

11.1  When the Committee has heard from all of the speakers on an item, the planning officer 

will respond to any new issues raised by the speakers. Committee Members may put questions 

to the planning officer (and other Council officers present) in relation to the details of the case, 

the issues raised by the speakers and the officer’s recommendation. The planning officer may 

provide further clarification relating to the application, planning policies, procedures and 

legislation, where necessary.  

Page 25



Draft January 2019   

  

12.0  Views and Voting  

  

12.1  When no further questions are to be put to the planning officer, the Chairman will then 

ask Committee Members to discuss their views on the application.   

  

12.2 If a Committee Member proposes a decision be taken which is contrary to that 

recommended by the planning officer; proposes additional conditions or informatives be 

attached to a decision; or proposes deferral of an item, the Committee Member must state 

clearly the reason for this proposal.   

  

12.3 Once any conflicting views have been heard, and in the advance of the main (substantive) 

vote, the Chairman may propose that the Committee vote on the addition of conditions, 

informatives or reasons for a decision, where necessary.   

  

12.4 The Chairman will then propose that a substantive vote is taken. All decisions are reached 

by a majority vote. In the event of a tie the Chairman will have a casting vote.   

  

12.5 Once the substantive vote has taken place, the Chairman will verbally summarise the 

decision, which will be minuted by the Committee and Governance Services Officer.   

  

13.0  Disturbance to the Committee   

  

13.1 During the meeting, members of the public will not be permitted to make representations 

from the public gallery and notes must not be passed from the public gallery to the Committee 

table. Members of the public or Councillors may be asked to leave the room if they cause 

disturbance to the process of the Committee.   

  

14.0  Application of Procedure Rules   

  

14.1  These rules should be read in conjunction with the Council’s Constitution.   

  

14.2 The above procedure rules will be reviewed from time to time and may be varied at the 

discretion of the Chairman in the case of extraordinary circumstances.   

  

  

  

  

  

 
  
(i) In order to be quorate, a minimum of three members must be present at the beginning of the meeting for 
the Planning (Major) Applications Sub-Committee and a minimum of two members must be present at the beginning 
of the meeting for Planning Applications Sub-Committees 1, 2 and 3.  
(ii) Members of the Planning Committee who are unable to attend the meeting may send a substitute if they 
have notified Committee and Governance Services prior to the meeting.   
(iii) In the case of factual errors, any proposed amendments to the minutes must be seconded and carried by 
a majority vote to become effective. The minutes are summary of the proceedings of the meeting and not a verbatim 
transcript.   
  

  

  

  
List of Recognised and Semi-Recognised Amenity Societies:  
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/list_of_amenity_societies_in_westminster2018.pdf    

  

Page 26

https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/list_of_amenity_societies_in_westminster2018.pdf
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/list_of_amenity_societies_in_westminster2018.pdf
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/list_of_amenity_societies_in_westminster2018.pdf
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/list_of_amenity_societies_in_westminster2018.pdf


APPENDIX 2 

    
  

  

Planning & City Development Committee  

Date: 17 January 2019  

    

Classification: General Release  

    

Title:  Planning  Review  including  the  Introduction  of  Public 

Representations at Planning Applications Committees  

    

Report of: Deirdra Armsby - Director of Place Shaping and Planning  

    

Financial Summary: The implications will be managed within existing resources.  

    

Report Author and Contact Details: Claragh Mulhern cmulhern@westminster.gov.uk  

  

  

1.  Executive Summary  

  

1.1 This report presents an update on the programme of work which is underway to implement 

the findings of the Planning Review undertaken by the Planning Advisory Service (PAS) as 

reported to Cabinet on 25 October 2018. Cabinet approved the direction of travel to make the 

planning service more proactive, transparent and focused on the delivery of the Council’s City 

for All vision and corporate priorities. This also involves making it easier for residents to engage 

with the planning system in Westminster.  

  

1.2 This will involve a major change to the culture and operation of the planning function of the 

Council under the new structure of the Place Shaping and Planning Directorate. This 

programme is being supported with internal resources to coordinate the activities and is being 

supported through the ongoing engagement of the Planning Advisory Service (PAS) in training 

and staff development.   

  

1.3 Since October 2018, Council officers have held a series of engagement workshops to 

inform the development of new procedures and protocols within the Council’s planning service 

and how to implement them (see list of engagement workshops at Appendix 1). This report 

presents an update on the options for implementing these new procedures and protocols.  Of 

significance, this report focuses on the introduction of public speaking rights, the proposals for 

which are outlined in this report for agreement before they are formally introduced at Planning 

Applications Sub-Committee meetings from February 2019.  

  

1.4 The report also sets out feedback received and the direction of travel on pre-application 

community engagement and delegated decision making. These will be fully implemented as 

part of the wider review.   

  

Page 27



1.5 The procedures and protocols will be formally reviewed after six months to ensure they are 

fit-for-purpose, but processes will, of course, be reviewed and amended continually.  

  

  

2.  Recommendation  

  

2.1  Members are asked to consider the contents of this report and:  

  

1. To agree to the proposed procedures and protocols to allow for members of the public 

to make verbal representations at Planning Applications Sub-Committee meetings as 

outlined in the Procedure Rules attached at Appendix 2.  

2. To agree that these procedures and protocols take effect from the first Sub-Committee 

meeting to take place when the Council moves back to 64 Victoria Street, subject to a 

6 month review of their effectiveness.  

3. To note the ongoing work to implement the proposals relating to pre-application 

community engagement and delegated authority with regards to planning decisions.  

  

3.       Background  

  

3.1 A review of Westminster’s planning service by the Planning Advisory Service and Local 

Government Association was undertaken in 2018 to look at all aspects of the decision-making 

process to ensure it is an independent and impartial process.   

3.2 The findings of the review were reported to Cabinet on 25 October 2018. Amongst the key 

recommendations of this review was the recommendation to facilitate the opportunity for 

members of the public to make verbal representations at planning sub-committee meetings as 

part of the overall aim to improve the transparency of the planning process and ensure that 

residents are at the heart of decision making. In addition, it was recommended that 

engagement with the local community on pre-planning proposals be enhanced and that the 

delegation of decision making on planning applications to officers be increased with only the 

more significant applications being reported to Committee. Cabinet agreed with these 

recommendations.   

3.3 The purpose of this report to the Planning and City Development Committee is to consider 

the procedures and protocols which need to be put in place to allow for public speaking to take 

place in an efficient, effective and fair manner. Members are also asked to note the progress 

on proposals relating to pre-application engagement and delegation arrangements. The 

recommendations outlined in this report have been discussed with the Cabinet Member for 

Place Shaping and Planning and the Chairman of Planning Committee.  

4.  Considerations  

Verbal representations at Committee  

4.1 In order to inform the recommendations outlined in this report, an assessment of 

procedures and protocols relating to public speaking at planning committees across the other 

London boroughs has been undertaken. From this assessment, a number of key matters for 

consideration were evident:  

i) the deadline for registering interest in speaking at the Committee meeting and the related 

registration process;   

ii) the number of persons/organisations permitted to speak either against or in support of the 

planning application being considered;  

iii) the length of time permitted for each speaker to make their case;  

Page 28



iv) practical matters relating to the Committee meeting including the running order of the 

speakers and the nature of the representations permitted.  

The recommendations outlined below are based on an assessment of common practice at 

other local authorities and taking into account the feedback received during the stakeholder 

engagement exercise undertaken between October and December 2018.  

  

4.2 The report to Cabinet on 25 October in response to the PAS review also outlined the need 

for consideration to be given to support for the public to make effective representations, the 

management of meetings by the Chairman, the layout of the room, and training requirements 

for Members sitting on Planning Sub-Committees.  

  

Registering an interest in speaking at Committee   

  

4.3 From an assessment of the practices at other London boroughs, it is clear that the majority 

of councils operate a formal process whereby anyone who wishes to speak at the Committee 

meeting must register in advance. In some rare exceptions people may arrive at the Committee 

meeting and declare their intentions to speak however this would be extremely difficult to 

manage and co-ordinate, with potentially large numbers of people wishing to speak on a single 

item. As such it is recommended that a formal registration process is established, with a 

deadline for submissions of interest in speaking.   

  

4.4 Any interested party who has made written representations during the course of the 

application (either in support or objection) would be notified that the application is due to be 

reported to Committee and they would be directed to information on the Council’s website 

which would outline the process for registering their interest in speaking at the Committee 

meeting. The website would include a simple outline of the process with guidance on how to 

make effective representations and in addition the procedure rules attached at Appendix 2 to 

this report would also be available to view online. Only those who have made written 

representations on the application would be notified by the Council of the application being 

reported to Committee but anyone would have the right to register to speak. The period for 

registration of interest in speaking would only commence after the case has been listed on a 

Committee agenda, published online at least 5 working days in advance of the meeting (i.e. 

any requests to speak included in a written representation on the application or direct contact 

with officers or Members would not override the formal registration process). The case would 

not be deferred to another Committee date if an interested party is not available to speak at 

the Committee meeting however they may ask a representative to speak on their behalf if 

appropriate.    

  

4.5 There are different approaches across the boroughs with regard to how the registration 

process is managed; some councils have online forms, some ask people to phone the Council 

however the majority provide an email address for registration. It is intended that an online 

form will be provided. In order to register, the objector/supporter or their representative would 

need to provide the reference number and address of the application, their name and contact 

details, the date on which the application is due to be reported to Committee, and whether they 

wish to speak against or in favour of the application providing a short overview of their reasons 

for requesting to speak.  

  

4.6 With regard to the deadline for registration, many other councils have deadlines either two 

working days before or the day before the Committee meeting. It is considered, in order to 

allow sufficient time for Committee and Governance Services to make the necessary 

arrangements, that a deadline of 12pm on the Friday immediately before the Tuesday 

committee meeting (i.e. two working days) is enforced. During the stakeholder engagement 

sessions, it was suggested by some stakeholders that the registration process should be open 

until 5pm on the day of Committee, however this is not considered to be practical as it will be 

necessary for officers and potentially the Chairman (depending on the options explored below) 

Page 29



to co-ordinate and allocate speaking slots. In addition, officers, Committee Members and the 

speakers themselves will need to have clarity in advance as to who will be permitted to speak 

and for how long. It is therefore strongly recommended that a deadline of 12pm two working 

days before the Committee meeting is agreed. Committee and Governance Services would 

subsequently provide the final list of speakers to the Committee Chairman and presiding officer 

by close of business on Monday (the day immediately before Committee).  

  

Number of persons/organisations permitted to speak  

  

4.7 The number of persons/organisations allowed to speak varies across the other London 

boroughs, ranging from some councils which do not place any maximum limit to others which 

only allow one speaker for and one speaker against the proposal. Many councils suggest that 

where more than one or two speakers wish to make representations either in support or 

against, the interested parties should discuss between themselves and nominate a 

spokesperson. This is generally either arranged in advance of the meeting, facilitated by the 

council sharing their contact details with each other, or immediately before the meeting where 

the potential speakers meet in the committee room 15/30 minutes before the meeting to 

nominate a speaker. Many other boroughs operate a system where a certain maximum number 

of speakers are allowed to speak, either for a set limited time or, where more than one or two 

people register to speak, the time may be shared between them.  

  

4.8 Taking into account practices at other local authorities and the feedback from stakeholders, 

it is considered that the fairest and simplest system would be to have a specified number of 

speaking slots (depending on whether the Committee is a Major or a SubCommittee) where 

the speakers are allowed to speak for a set limited time. In order to ensure that the wide range 

of issues which may be at play are fairly represented, it is recommended that the same number 

of speaking slots is provided for those wishing to speak against and those wishing to speak in 

favour; however interested parties are encouraged to take a positive approach to their 

involvement and suggest what changes to the application or conditions could overcome their 

concerns, in the spirit of achieving a balanced outcome. The applicant would be allowed to 

speak in support of their application; taking one of the slots for supporters. A number of other 

boroughs advise that the applicant should only be allowed the opportunity to speak where an 

objector is speaking against the proposal, however it is considered reasonable to allow the 

applicant to speak irrespective of whether or not anyone wishes to speak against.  

  

4.9 Standard speaking slots be allocated as follows as follows:   

o Planning (Major) Applications Sub-Committees: a maximum of two 

speakers in support of the application (with one of these slots reserved for the 

applicant or their nominated spokesperson) and two against. In addition, there 

be a separate slot for the recognised and/or semi-recognised amenity society  

and a further slot for the relevant Ward Councillors should they wish to speak.  

  

o Planning Applications Sub-Committees 1, 2 and 3: a maximum of one 

speaker in support (normally the applicant or their nominated spokesperson) 

and one speaker against. In addition, there be a separate slot for the recognised 

and/or semi-recognised amenity society and a further slot for the relevant Ward 

Councillors should they wish to speak.   

  

If the number of requests to speak either in support or against the application exceeds the 

number of public speaking slots outlined above, potential speakers will be encouraged to either 

nominate a speaker who will make a verbal representation at the Planning Applications 

SubCommittee on their common behalf, or to share the total time to be allocated to speaking 

slots for either objectors or supporters, as the case may be, between them (e.g. at a Major 

committee where two 3 minute speaking slots are allocated for those speaking in opposition to 

the application however six people register to speak, they would each be given one minute to 

Page 30



speak).  The Committee and Governance Services team would contact the relevant parties on 

the Friday afternoon immediately after the registration deadline and seek their agreement for 

their contact details to be shared with the other parties in advance of the meeting to decide on 

whether they wish to nominate a speaker or share the time between them (this agreement is 

necessary in order to avoid concerns regarding data protection). The nomination of the 

spokesperson or clarification that the time is to be shared between the speakers would need 

to be submitted to the Committee and Governance Services Team by the following Monday at 

12pm (i.e. the day before Committee). If the spokesperson were to be nominated or the 

speaking slots shared immediately before the meeting as in some other authorities, this could 

result in disagreements about who should represent the group and several potential speakers 

preparing representations in advance, only to be disappointed by not being allowed to speak 

or preparing their representations before the meeting only to discover that they have less time 

to speak.   

  

4.10 Where agreement cannot be reached between the parties on a nominated 

spokesperson (for example where objectors have different concerns) or for the time to 

be shared between the speakers; it is proposed that the Chairman, in conjunction with 

the Presiding Officer, may choose to agree to a random selection process (a ballot) to 

determine who will speak. It is also recommended that the Chairman should only use 

his/her discretion to allow more speakers to make representations in extraordinary 

circumstances such as where an application is of a significantly large scale or highly 

contentious. Interested parties may also wish to contact their Ward Councillors and 

request that they make representations on their behalf however if such requests by 

Ward Councillors are made after the Friday deadline (see 4.11 below) they will need to 

be submitted directly to the Chairman for agreement.  

  

4.11 In addition to the members of the public being allowed to speak, it is 

recommended that an additional speaking slot be provided for the relevant local 

recognised or semi-recognised amenity society to make verbal representations. These 

organisations are designated statutory consultees in the planning process, are well-

organised, have members with in-depth knowledge of their areas and their input is 

highly valued by officers and Members. It is currently the case that where a local Ward 

Councillor wishes to speak either in objection to or in support of an application, they 

may request permission from the Committee chairman. It is recommended that a 

speaking slot is provided for Ward Councillors who should follow the same procedure 

as outlined above in terms of registration. Where a Ward Councillor requests that an 

application relating to their ward is reported to Committee, they must attend the relevant 

Committee meeting to outline their views.  

  

Length of time permitted for each speaker  

  

4.12 The length of time permitted for each speaker varies across the London boroughs. Most 

allow either two or three minutes per speaker but some advise that a maximum of, for example, 

five minutes is allowed for objectors to be shared between those who wish to speak (with the 

result that where five people register to speak, they are given one minute each to speak) whilst 

others allow up to five minutes for a nominated speaker to speak on behalf of objectors.   

  

4.13 As outlined above, a set maximum number of speaking slots is recommended; the number 

of speakers allowed depending on the scale of the application. It is recommended that a period 

of three minutes is permitted for each speaker (except where the number of requests exceeds 

the number of speaking slots and potential speakers agree to share the total speaking time 

between them as outlined in 4.9 above).   

  

Practical matters including order of events  

  

Page 31



4.14 The running order of the Committee is outlined in the Procedure Rules attached at 

Appendix 2 and will, in general terms, not change significantly from the current procedure with 

the exception of the order of speakers. In brief summary, the following order of speakers is 

recommended:  
Order of Speakers   

i)  Planning Officer presentation of the case  
  
ii) Applicant and any other supporter(s)    

iii) Objectors  
  
iv) Amenity Society (Recognised or Semi-Recognised)   

v) Ward Councillor(s) and/or MP(s)  
  
vi) Council Officers response to verbal representations  
  
vii) Member discussion (including questions to officers for clarification)   
  
viii) Member vote  
  

  

4.15 Only verbal representations should be allowed; it is not considered necessary or 

reasonable to allow members of the public to use visual presentation material. Representations 

should pertain to planning issues relevant to the application and should generally reflect the 

issues already raised in the written submissions made during the course of the application. 

When the speaker has finished making their representations, they should then re-take their 

seat in the public gallery (except in the case of Ward Councillors who may sit adjacent to the 

Committee). The Committee Members may ask questions of the planning officer seeking 

clarification on certain points and when all speakers have finished, Members will discuss the 

case and may ask questions of the planning officer before taking a vote.  

  

Committee Room Layout and Guidance on the Committee Process   

  

4.16 The PAS review noted that due to the layout and arrangement of the current committee 

room, the attendees and general public at Committee felt isolated from the Committee 

Members. The review team also noted that large individual screens blocked the ability to see 

the Committee Members and there is a lack of basic guidance and information which makes 

the committee process difficult to understand as an attendee. It is noted that the Committee 

meetings attended by the PAS team took place at 5 Strand and the layout there is a temporary 

solution while renovation works are undertaken at 64 Victoria Street. The new chamber at 64 

Victoria Street will be laid out to reduce the separation between the Committee Members and 

public gallery.   

  

4.17 It is also proposed to live-stream and record Planning Applications Sub-Committee 

meetings and make the coverage available post-meeting. Work is currently underway to 

identify and procure an appropriate technological solution with these facilities required to be 

place when the first Planning Applications Committee meeting takes place at 64 Victoria Street 

following the refurbishment works. Subject to the proposals outlined in this report with regard 

to public speaking being agreed by Members, it is intended that public speaking at Planning 

Committees will be introduced as soon as the rooms and technology in 64 Victoria Street are 

ready for use (planned during February).  

  

4.18 It is proposed to provide improved guidance, for the benefit of members of the public, to 

explain the committee process and how the Chairman may manage the Committee meeting. 

The procedure rules attached at Appendix 1 to this report form the basis for this guidance, 

Page 32



however it may be simplified and included on the Council’s website and at the Committee 

meeting to help attendees and others to understand the process. This information will form part 

of a wider programme to review all digital content to improve accessibility for the general public; 

with the aim of improving the way we explain planning policies and decisions to make them 

easier to understand.  

Pre-application Community Engagement   

  

4.19 The PAS report recommends that the Council develops a new approach to the early 

involvement of communities in shaping proposals, proportionate to the type of development. 

Such an approach could be co-ordinated by planning officers, in conjunction with ward 

councillors, who would be encouraged and supported to play a stronger role in influencing and 

guiding any developments in their ward at an earlier stage in the planning process.  

  

4.20 Many large developments already benefit from pre-application engagement with the 

community, yet this is primarily delivered by the applicant in isolation from the Council. It is 

therefore proposed that the Council plays a more active role in this process in order to identify 

and in an attempt to resolve any potential issues in advance of the planning application being 

formally submitted. This will require a revision of the Council’s Statement of Community 

Involvement (SCI) to outline, at the pre-application stage, best practice for developers.    

  

4.21 In addition to the informal engagement, consideration is currently being given to options 

for more formal meetings or forums where applicants may present their proposals to the local 

community, Ward Councillors and officers. Feedback on these initial proposals from 

stakeholders has been mixed, with additional information and clarity on how these ‘forums’ 

might be facilitated and resourced required. Concerns have also been raised regarding the 

pressure on resources of amenity societies as well as officers.  

  

4.22 PAS has been retained to provide further guidance on this subject and a programme of 

research into best practice at other local authorities is proposed. As such, it is premature at 

this stage to make formal recommendations and more detailed proposals will be reported back 

to members as they develop.   

  

Delegated Authority  

  

4.23 PAS recommends that Planning Applications Sub-Committee meetings should focus on 

major and contentious applications rather than small-scale applications which raise local 

issues and that such applications should be delegated to officers. Currently, 97% of planning 

decisions within the Council are already taken under delegated authority by planning officers. 

The current scheme of delegation to officers allows for most applications to be delegated to 

officers (with the exception of, for example, strategic or highly contentious applications or 

Council applications where refusal is being recommended), with officers using their discretion 

to report applications to Committee depending on the nature of objections received. As such it 

is not proposed to significantly change the current scheme of delegation from Members to 

officers in respect of decisions on planning applications.  

  

4.24 Ward councillors will retain their right to call in all planning applications to Committee and 

will be required to attend the Committee meeting to discuss any concerns about an application 

in their ward if they have called the application in.  

  

4.25 It is also proposed to explore options for increased delegation to a wider number of 

planning officers and to delegate the hierarchy of decision making which is currently highly 

concentrated at a senior officer level. It is proposed that planning officers engage more with 

ward councillors at the pre-application stage to solve issues, thereby avoiding the need for an 

application to be reported to a Planning Applications Sub-Committee at the end of the process. 

Appropriate checks and balances would remain in place with peer review of proposed 

Page 33



decisions and escalation controls in the event of certain thresholds being reached with different 

applications. This will require a comprehensive shift in culture as well as a training and 

development programme for officers, planning for which has already commenced.  

4.26 These proposals will be considered as part of the review of the operating model of the 

directorate, as the major changes relate to officer processes and management structures. Any 

changes would be undertaken in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Place Shaping and  

Planning.    

  

5. Financial Implications  

  

5.1 None  

  

6. Legal Implications  

  

6.1 None  

  

7.  Conclusion  

  

7.1     Following an assessment of the procedures and protocols at other London boroughs 

and taking into account the feedback received during the recent stakeholder engagement 

sessions, it is recommended that the attached procedure rules be adopted for the facilitation 

of public speaking at Planning Applications Sub-Committee meetings. Members are also asked 

to note the ongoing work on facilitating improved pre-application engagement with the 

community and the review of the delegation arrangements for planning decisions.  

  

  

If you have any questions about this report, or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers, please contact: Claragh Mulhern on x2535  
  

  

Background Papers:  

1. Engagement sessions undertaken and options appraisal.  

2. Planning Applications Sub-Committee Procedure Rules DRAFT.  

3. Report to Cabinet on Planning Review dated 25 October 2018 and associated 

resolution and appendix:  

https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=478 

4&Ver=4  

4. List of Recognised and Semi-Recognised Amenity Societies:  

https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/list_of_amenity_societies_in_we 

stminster2018.pdf  

  

  

Page 34

https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=4784&Ver=4
https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=4784&Ver=4
https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=4784&Ver=4
https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=4784&Ver=4
https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=4784&Ver=4
https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=4784&Ver=4
https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=4784&Ver=4
https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=4784&Ver=4
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/list_of_amenity_societies_in_westminster2018.pdf
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/list_of_amenity_societies_in_westminster2018.pdf
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/list_of_amenity_societies_in_westminster2018.pdf
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/list_of_amenity_societies_in_westminster2018.pdf
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/list_of_amenity_societies_in_westminster2018.pdf
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/list_of_amenity_societies_in_westminster2018.pdf
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/list_of_amenity_societies_in_westminster2018.pdf
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/list_of_amenity_societies_in_westminster2018.pdf


APPENDIX 3 

 

  

1  

  

  

  

 MINUTES  

  

CITY OF WESTMINSTER  

  

  

Planning & City Development Committee   

  

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS  

  

Minutes of a meeting of the Planning & City Development Committee held on 

Thursday 17th January, 2019, Room 3.1, 3rd Floor, 5 Strand, London, WC2 5HR.  

  

Members Present: Councillors Gotz Mohindra (Chairman), Tim Barnes,  

David Boothroyd, Susie Burbridge, Ruth Bush, Melvyn Caplan, Peter Freeman, Murad 

Gassanly, Jim Glen, Elizabeth Hitchcock, Louise Hyams, Robert Rigby, Selina Short 

and James Spencer  

  

Also Present:  Councillor Richard Beddoe (Cabinet Member for Place Shaping and 

Planning)  

  

1 MEMBERSHIP  

  

1.1  Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Geoff Barraclough, 

Tony Devenish, Angela Harvey, Guthrie McKie and Tim Roca.  

  

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

  

2.1  Cllr David Boothroyd declared that he was Head of Research and Psephology 

for Thorncliffe, whose clients were companies applying for planning 

permission from various local authorities. No current schemes were in 

Westminster; if there were he would be precluded from working on them under 

the company’s code of conduct.  

  

3 MINUTES  

  

RESOLVED:   

  

3.1  That the Minutes of the Planning and City Development Committee meeting 

held on 12 November 2018 be approved.  

  

 

 

Page 35



 
 

  

2  

  

4 PLANNING REVIEW INCLUDING THE INTRODUCTION OF PUBLIC 

REPRESENTATIONS AT PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEES  

  

4.1  The Committee received a report from the Director of Place Shaping and 

Planning providing an update on the programme of work that was underway to 

implement the findings of the Planning Review undertaken by the Planning  

Advisory Service (PAS). The Cabinet Member for Place Shaping and  

Planning presented the report and the Chief Executive, the Director of Place 

Shaping and Planning, HR Business Partner and the Principle Planning 

Solicitor were also in attendance to answer questions.  

  

4.2  The Cabinet Member for Place Shaping and Planning provided an overview of 

the recommendations, which would facilitate the opportunity for members of 

the public to make verbal representations at Planning Sub-Committee 

meetings. The following key features of the proposed procedures and 

protocols relating to public speaking were highlighted:  

  

• Anyone wishing to speak at Sub-Committee meetings would be  

required to register their interest in advance;  

  

• The number of persons/organisations permitted to speak would differ 

according to the type of Sub-Committee being held. For the Planning 

(Major) Applications Sub-Committee, it was proposed to permit a 

maximum of two speakers in support of the application and two against. 

Whilst for Planning Applications Sub-Committees 1, 2 and 3 there 

would be a maximum of one permitted speaker in support and one 

against. In addition, it was confirmed that the procedure rules would be 

amended for all Sub-Committee meetings to enable more than one 

relevant Ward Councillor and amenity society to address the meeting if 

required.  

  

• A period of three minutes be permitted for each speaker except where 

the number of requests exceeds the number of speaking slots. In such 

circumstances, potential speakers would share the total speaking time 

between them if a nominated spokesperson could not be agreed upon.  

  

• Practical matters including the running order of speakers and permitting 

verbal representations only.  

  

4.3 The Committee welcomed the proposals and confirmed the importance 

of permitting public speaking to improve transparency of the planning 

process and ensure residents were at the heart of decision-making. 

The commitment that the proposals would be formally reviewed after 

six months was also considered important to assess how successful 

the measures had been and allow any improvements to be 

implemented if considered necessary. Amendments to the proposed 

procedures were noted and the Committee was pleased that this 

included permitting more than one Ward Councillor and Amenity 

Page 36



 
 

  

3  

  

Society to make verbal representations. This was especially considered 

important on applications that had the potential to affect more than one 

ward. To assist potential speakers the Committee also requested that 

guidance be produced to try to ensure any verbal representations were 

relevant and appropriate.   

  

4.4 The Committee discussed the new proposed approach to pre-

application community engagement, which included involving 

communities at an early stage of the planning process to help influence 

and shape developments. The Committee noted that work on the initial 

proposals was still ongoing but welcomed the Council playing a more 

active role at an earlier stage. It was considered this would help resolve 

any potential issues in advance of a planning application being formally 

submitted.  

  

4.5 In response to questions from the Committee the Cabinet Member for 

Place Shaping and Planning commented that:  

  

• It was not currently proposed for Neighbourhood Forums to have an 

allocated speaking slot at Sub-Committee meetings, however this could 

be reviewed after six months;  

  

• Sub-Committee members would not be permitted to ask speakers 

questions as the Planning Presiding Officer would be present to answer 

any technical questions;  

  

• The order of speakers was currently considered appropriate but this 

would be assessed during the formal six month review of the process;  

  

• Minor amendments to the procedure would be made including any 

references to 12pm being changed to noon and ensuring officers were 

also asked to declare any interests at Sub-Committee meetings.  

  

4.6  The Committee welcomed the proposals and agreed that facilitating the 

opportunity for members of the public to make verbal representations at 

Planning Sub-Committee meetings was a positive step forward. The 

procedures and protocols required to allow public speaking to take place were 

considered efficient, effective and fair and Members were pleased to note that 

they would be subject to a six-month review of their effectiveness. Subject to 

the minor amendments to the proposed procedure rules detailed above, the 

Committee agreed the report’s recommendations.  

  

RESOLVED:  

  

1) That the proposed procedures and protocols to allow for members of the 

public to make verbal representations at Planning Applications SubCommittee 

meetings, as amended, be agreed;  

  

Page 37



 
 

  

4  

  

2) That the proposed procedures and protocols take effect from the first 

SubCommittee meeting to be held at City Hall, 64 Victoria Street, subject to a 

6 month review of their effectiveness; and  

  

3) That the ongoing work to implement the proposals relating to pre-application 

community engagement and delegated authority with regards to planning 

decisions be noted.  

  

  

The Meeting ended at 7.44pm  

  

  

  

CHAIRMAN:      DATE    

 
  

Page 38



APPENDIX 4  
    
  

  

Planning & City Development Committee  

Date: 20 June 2019  

    

Classification: General Release  

    

Title: Update on the Planning Review  

    

Report of: Executive Director of Growth Planning and Housing and Director of Place 

Shaping and Town Planning  

    

Financial Summary: The implications will be managed within existing resources.  

    

Report Author and Contact Details: Oliver Gibson (ogibson@westminster.gov.uk/ 020 7641 

2680)  

  

  

1.   Executive Summary   

   

1.1 This report presents an update on the Planning Review programme of work to deliver 

improvements to the processes and practices of the planning service to address the 

findings of the review carried out by the Planning Advisory Service (PAS), which were 

endorsed by Cabinet on 25 October 2018. Cabinet approved the direction of travel to 

make the planning service more proactive, transparent and focused on the delivery of 

the Council’s City for All vision and other corporate priorities. This includes making it 

easier for residents to engage with the planning system in Westminster.   

   

1.2  Initial progress on the Planning Review was reported to the Planning and City Development 

Committee on 17 January 2019 (see Appendix 1). The initial stage in implementing 

measures to address the PAS report findings comprised the introduction of public 

speaking at the Planning Applications Sub-Committees. In January the Committee 

agreed with amendments the procedures and protocols to allow for members of the 

public to make verbal representations at the Sub-Committee meetings. Public speaking 

was subsequently introduced at the Planning Applications SubCommittee on 26 

February 2019. To date the agreed procedures and protocols have been successful in 

facilitating public speaking. Notwithstanding this, a detailed 6- month review of public 

speaking will be carried out in August 2019 in accordance with the previous Committee 

resolution. The findings and recommendations of the 6-month review will be reported 

to the next Planning and City Development Committee.  

  

1.3 To incorporate the changes outlined above and to meet the requirements to create a more 

transparent and robust Town Planning decisions function, attached at Appendix 1 is an 

updated document titled draft Guidance for members- Making Planning Decisions. This 

outlines best practice for Members of Planning Committees across a range of issues 

Page 39



including standards of conduct, probity in decision making, conflicts of interest as well 

as support and guidance on the substance and parameters of taking planning 

decisions. Subject to the views of this Committee it is proposed that this draft  

is submitted to the Standards Committee on 11 July 2019. Members are asked to 

approve the draft Guidance, note that the comments the Standards Committee will be 

sought and delegate to the Director, in consultation with the Chair, the approval and 

publication of a final version.  

  

1.4  Since January 2019, officers have continued work to establish the scope of changes 

required to current processes and practices to deliver the service enhancements 

identified in the PAS report and sought by Cabinet. Following on from the engagement 

workshops held with Members and external stakeholders in late 2018, planning staff 

have undertaken visits to observe the planning services of the other local authorities 

that were identified in the PAS report (Camden, Wolverhampton and Cornwall). 

Following these visits staff took part in a departmental Away Day on 5 June to identify 

the strengths and weaknesses of existing processes and practices and identify the 

aspirations of officers for the future of the service.  

  

1.5 Following the Away Day the scope of the changes to procedures and protocols to be taken 

forward as part of the Planning Review will be finalised. The preferred options for 

implementation of each aspect of the review will also be identified, including how pre-

application community engagement and increased delegated decision making can be 

delivered. A timetable for implementation of the different aspects of the review will also 

be set. The preferred options and the finalised timetable will be reported to the next 

Planning and City Development Committee.   

  

2.   Recommendation   

   

2.1 Members are asked to consider the contents of this report and to note the ongoing work to 

implement measures to address the findings of the PAS report as part of the wider 

Planning Review programme.  

2.2  The Committee is recommended to approve the draft Guidance for Members – 
Making Planning Decisions (at Appendix 1), subject to the incorporation of views and 
advice of the Standards Committee at their meeting on 11th July 2019, and to agree to 
delegate publication of the final version to the Director of Place Shaping and Town 
Planning, following consultation with the Director of Law and Chair of the Planning and 
City Development Committee.  

  

   

3.        Background   

   

3.1  A review of Westminster’s planning service by the Planning Advisory Service and Local 

Government Association was undertaken in 2018 to look at all aspects of the 

decisionmaking process to ensure it is an independent and impartial process.    

  

3.2  The findings of the review were reported to Cabinet on 25 October 2018. The review set 

out a number of key recommendations, which included introducing the opportunity for 

members of the public to make verbal representations at Planning Applications 

SubCommittee. A process and protocol for the introduction of public speaking were 

endorsed by the Committee on 17 January 2019 and public speaking was subsequently 

introduced on 26 February 2019. The next phase of the Planning Review programme 

is focused on delivering changes to processes and practices to address the other PAS 

recommendations, which were:  

  

Page 40



• Development of closer links between development management officers and 

officers in Planning Policy and the delivery and regeneration teams.  

• Establish appropriate distance between the regulatory planning service and 

applicants, agents, formal community organisations and the public.  

• Review committee practices and procedures to focus resources on strategic 

development and involve Members earlier in the pre-application and application 

processes.  

• Delegate decision making to a greater number of officers.  

• Review roles of the Highways Planning team and the corporate highways function 

so that they are more closely aligned and share objectives and priorities.  

• Continue to seek to improve recruitment and retention of planning officers.  

• Review communication of planning decisions, including review of website content, 

communication of Planning Performance Agreements to ensure the service to be 

provided to customers is clearly communicated and review of the form of the service 

offered at pre-application and application stage.   

  

3.3  The purpose of this report is to update the Planning and City Development Committee 
on progress since January 2019 on the work carried out as part of the Planning 
Review programme to deliver service enhancements and changes to processes and 
practices that will enable the recommendations of the PAS report to be realised.  

  

4.   Considerations   

  

Overview of the Planning Review  

  

4.1  The Planning Review Team has adopted a programme structure designed to enable a 

collaborative approach to the delivery of the changes required to deliver the PAS report 

recommendations, which will draw upon the expertise of staff within Place Shaping and 

Town Planning. The structure comprises three ‘Clusters’, each with a specific officer 

lead under which eight ‘Workstreams’ have been identified. The Workstreams will have 

a lead officer and a working group comprised of officers from Place Shaping and Town 

Planning, who will be tasked with developing the necessary changes to existing 

processes and procedures in tandem with officers from the Planning Review Team. 

The structure is designed to ensure appropriate oversight of the workstreams, with 

regular upward reporting of progress on each workstream to the management group 

within Place Shaping and Town Planning, the Planning Review Board and the Cabinet 

Member for Place Shaping and Planning.  

  

4.2 Appendix 1 contains a document titled draft Guidance for Members- Making Planning 

Decisions. This document outlines essential and crucial information and guidance 

across the broad range of issues that will ensure the outcomes of the planning review 

are met. This draft updated guidance is designed to ensure that decisions are taken in 

a robust, transparent way to provide high levels of integrity to the process. It therefore 

outlines clear advice on the standards of conduct of members in respect of their role 

on planning committees, including gifts and hospitality, site inspections, dealing with 

development proposals impacting Councillors, their families or close associates. This 

is set within general principles such as making decisions with an open mind, absence 

of predisposition and focusing on material planning matters. Procedural issues are also 

laid out as well as guidance on how they will be advised at Committees and in reports 

presented. This guidance should be read in conjunction with extant protocols and 

procedures for Member involvement at pre-application stage governing requests for 

meetings with developers (April 2019) and the ongoing member training opportunities. 

All of this guidance is kept under review and with other changes in prospect as indicated 

in this report, it is likely that further updates on this will be brought forward. This is to 

Page 41



ensure that Members are always fully equipped to continue to make robust, transparent 

and effective decisions.   

  

4.3 Since the previous Planning and City Development Committee in January 2019 officers 

have undertaken visits to observe the planning services of the local authorities that 

were identified in the PAS report as examples of innovative and good practice 

(Camden, Wolverhampton and Cornwall). The visits have allowed officers to more 

clearly understand how the recommendations made in the PAS report may be realised 

in practice and enabled the processes and procedures used in these authorities to be 

understood, whilst also offering insight into the differing scales of these example 

planning authorities and the varying physical, social and political environments in which 

they operate. This has enhanced officers understanding of the breadth of options for 

delivering a successful planning service and has been of significant assistance in 

undertaking the ongoing scoping and options analysis exercise, which will identify the 

changes to current processes and procedures that will be taken forward as part of the 

Planning Review programme.   

  

4.4 An Away Day for all officers in Place Shaping and Town Planning was held on 5th June to 

enable all staff within the department, as expert practitioners in their fields, to provide 

their views and ideas on how the recommendations of the PAS report can most 

effectively be realised. The Away Day was a significant opportunity to reinforce the 

cultural change that has occurred within the department to date, particularly following 

the integration of the Place Shaping Team, and to involve all officers in the formation 

of a departmental vision, which will define the new culture of the department following 

the completion of the Planning Review programme.   

  

4.5 As well as discussion of a departmental vision, the Away Day focused the potential for 

reform of the pre-application service to increase transparency and Member and 

community involvement, the introduction of Design Review Panels, extension of 

delegated powers to more junior officers, improvement of working relationships with 

other Council departments and teams and achieving greater digital inclusion through 

website improvements and best use of software, systems and technology. The ideas 

and suggestions offered by staff at the Away Day have been collated and reviewed by 

the Planning Review Team and are being used to inform the scoping and options 

analysis exercise described in paragraph 4.2.  

  

4.6 The scoping and options analysis exercise will result in a paper that will set out the preferred 

options for delivering the recommendations of the PAS report. A timetable will also be 

produced to identify the timescales for delivery of the changes to current processes and 

practice that will collectively deliver a new operating model for the department. The 

changes that would deliver on the key recommendations of the PAS report will be 

prioritised within the delivery timetable where possible.  

  

4.7 The following sections of the report set out a short update on the key recommendations 

identified in the PAS report.  

  

Public Speaking at Planning Applications Sub-Committees  

  

 4.8 In January the Committee resolved to agree the proposed procedures and protocols to 

allow for members of the public to make verbal representations at the Sub-Committee 

meetings. Public speaking was subsequently introduced at the Planning Applications 

Sub-Committee on 26 February 2019. The agreed procedures require speakers to 

register in advance on the Council’s website if they wish to speak and the number of 

speakers for and against is limited at each committee meeting with each speaker limited 

to no more than 3 minutes (see Appendix 1 for full details of the public speaking process 

Page 42



and protocol). Up to 7 May 2019 there have been 41 requests to speak publicly at 11 

Planning Applications Sub-Committee meetings. Of these, 27 speakers were in support 

of schemes and 13 speakers were objecting to schemes. One representation was made 

by a local amenity society.  

  

4.9 To date the agreed procedures and protocols have been successful in facilitating and 

managing public speaking at Planning Applications Sub-Committee meetings. 

Notwithstanding this, a detailed 6 month review of public speaking will be carried out in 

August 2019 pursuant to the requirements of the January 2019 Committee resolution. 

The review will include consultation with all participants and stakeholders, including 

members sitting on the three Sub-Committees. The findings and recommendations of 

the 6 month review will be reported to the next Planning and City Development 

Committee.  

  

4.10 Work is currently on going to source, procure and introduce software and technology that 

will allow live recording and streaming of planning committee meetings, with the 

expectation that this service will be commenced in autumn 2019. This will allow 

applicants and stakeholders to watch the meeting live or view previously recorded 

committees and encourage wider participation and transparency in the planning 

process. Once installed, the system will be available for use by other committees held 

in the same room, such as Licensing.   

  

4.11 In tandem with the introduction of recording and live streaming of committee meetings a 

regular programme of training will be arranged for the Members of the three 

SubCommittees. It is intended that training will be provided for Members on a quarterly 

basis with the dates to coincide with Planning and City Development Committee 

meetings. The training to be offered as part of this programme will be confirmed in due 

course but will include media training, as well as topic based training on planning policy 

and legislation.  

  

Pre-application Community and Member Engagement    

   

4.12  The PAS report recommends that the Council develops a new approach to the early 

involvement of communities in shaping development proposals, which is proportionate 

to their scale. The report to the Planning and City Development Committee in January 

2019 set out how this recommendation could be realised through planning officers 

playing a greater role in co-ordinating pre-application engagement on major schemes. 

This will enable more transparent consultation with the local community and enable the 

involvement of ward councillors, who will be able to play a stronger role in influencing 

and guiding developments in their ward at an earlier stage in the planning process.   

   

4.13  Following feedback from stakeholders in late 2018 and in light of the visits to Camden, 

Wolverhampton and Cornwall, and the Away Day sessions with Place Shaping and 

Town Planning officers, the Planning Review Team are currently considering the 

options for how this more transparent and engaging pre-application process can be 

delivered. The design of this service will draw on the examples of good practice that 

have been observed, albeit with the service designed specifically for the particular 

needs and constraints of Westminster. It is expected that formal recommendations and 

more detailed proposals will be reported to the next Planning and City Development 

Committee.    

  

Delegated Authority   

   

4.14  The PAS report recommends that Planning Applications Sub-Committee meetings should 

focus on major and contentious applications rather than small-scale applications which 

Page 43



raise local issues and that such applications should be delegated to officers. The 

current scheme of delegation to officers allows for most applications to be delegated to  

officers with officers using their discretion to report applications to a Sub-Committee 

depending on the nature of objections received. At the time of the Planning and City 

Development Committee in January 2019, 97% of planning decisions were being taken 

under delegated authority by planning officers.   

  

4.15 It has been observed that since the publication of the PAS report and the Cabinet decision 

to endorse it, there has been a cultural shift in terms of officers exercising their 

delegated authority to determine smaller scale applications; albeit working within the 

parameters of the terms of the existing schedule of delegation. This has already 

resulted in a downward trend in terms of the numbers of applications being reported to 

the Planning Applications Sub-Committees. As a result, it was possible for the Annual 

Council Meeting to resolve on 15 May 2019 to reduce the number of Planning  

Applications Sub-Committee’s from 4 to 3. This reduction will deliver some limited 

departmental cost savings and reduce the time spent by officers on the time consuming 

committee processes.  

  

  Table 1 – Numbers of Applications Reported to the Planning Applications 

SubCommittees.  

    

Period  
No. of  
Meetings  

No. of  
Apps  
Reported  

No. of 

Items  

Length of 
Committe 
e (Hrs)  

Items Per 

Hour  

2017/18                 

Half Year 1 - 1 May 17 to 10 

Oct 17  24  192  7.67  1.92  4.30  

Half Year 2 - 17 Oct 17 to 24 

April 18  24  184  8.00  2.05  4.46  

YR TOTALS  48  376  7.83  1.98  4.38  

2018/19                 

Half Year 1 - 1 May 18 to 23 

Oct 18  24  160  6.67  1.74  4.26  

Half Year 2 - 30 Oct 18 to 23 

April 19  22  103  4.68  1.67  3.37  

YR TOTALS  46  263  5.98  1.78  4.01  

  

4.16 In light of paragraphs 4.14 and 4.15, it is not envisaged that significant change to the 

current schedule of delegation from Members to officers will be required in respect of 

the reporting of applications to a planning committee, although limited amendments 

could be made to afford officers greater delegated powers in the case of minor 

applications where only a small number of objections on valid planning grounds have 

been received. As reported in January 2019, it is expected at this stage that Ward 

Councillors will retain their right to call in all planning applications to Committee and will 

be required to attend the Committee meeting to discuss any concerns about an 

application in their ward if they have called the application in. However, all of these 

options are currently being scoped by the Planning Review Team as part of the options 

analysis process.   

   

4.17 As reported in January 2019, the Planning Review Team is in the process of exploring 

options for increased delegation to a wider number of planning officers and to delegate 

the hierarchy of decision making which is currently highly concentrated at a senior 

officer level. It is proposed that planning officers engage more with Ward Councillors at 

the pre-application stage to solve issues, thereby avoiding the need for an application 

to be reported to a Planning Applications Sub-Committee at the end of the process. 

Page 44



Appropriate checks and balances would remain in place with peer review of proposed 

decisions and escalation controls in the event of certain thresholds being reached with 

different applications. This will require a comprehensive shift in culture as  

well as a training and development programme for officers, planning for which has 

already commenced.   

  

 4.18 These proposals, for which options are currently being modelled and analysed, will be 
considered as part of the review of the operating model of the directorate, which forms 
part of the wider changes envisaged as part of the Planning Review programme.  

   

Achieving Closer Alignment and Developing Relationships with Other Services and 

Directorates  

  

4.19 The PAS report encourages closer alignment between development management officers 

and officers in other departments and teams, including planning policy and the delivery 

and regeneration teams. It also suggests review of the relationship and linkages of the 

Highways Planning team with the Council’s corporate highways function so that the two 

are more closely aligned and share objectives and priorities.  

  

4.20 Initial discussions have been held between Place Shaping and Town Planning officers 

and officers in Planning Policy and the Economy Team, with the aim of building more 

positive and collaborative relationships to improve the delivery of the Council’s 

corporate objectives through planning decision making. Further discussions to 

formalise the future relationships and linkages with these teams will be required and 

separate discussions will also be required with the delivery and regeneration teams. 

Progress towards adoption of the new City Plan will assist this process as the new suite 

of policies this will deliver will be more closely aligned with the Council’s current 

priorities, aims and objectives than those contained within the current 2007 UDP and 

2016 version of the City Plan.  

  

4.21 In response to the findings of the PAS Review the Highways Planning and Trees teams 

are in the process of being moved to within City Management and Communities so that 

they are more closely aligned with the corporate highways function in terms of line 

management. However, these teams will remain in their current form and will continue 

to provide the same service to Place Shaping and Town Planning in terms of their 

observations on development proposals and tree works applications.  

  

4.22 The Planning Review project will investigate whether there are opportunities for linkages 

between Place Shaping and Town Planning on an operational level, such as through 

the shared use of technology with other departments including Licensing.  

  

Enhancing Transparency and Maintaining Probity  

  

4.23 The PAS report recommends that appropriate distance between the regulatory planning 

service and applicants, agents, formal community organisations and the public is 

established. The report to Cabinet enabled the Chief Executive to restate to both 

officers and Members their responsibilities in terms of the Council’s gifts and hospitality 

policies. Cabinet’s endorsement of the cabinet report and the findings set out in the 

PAS report therefore marked a point of change in terms of the relationship that officers 

have with applicants, agents, formal community organisations and the public in future. 

Subsequently training has been undertaken by all officers to ensure that they are aware 

of the requirements of the anti-bribery policy.  

  

4.24 As outlined above in paragraph 4.2, the ‘Guidance for Members Making Planning 

Decisions’ document has been updated to reflect changes in Town and Country 

Page 45



Planning legislation, regulations, and Council policies and procedures. The updated 

Guide  includes a section on gifts and hospitality, the value of high standards of probity 

to the integrity of the decision making system, conflicts of interest. underlining the  

strong relationship between this high standard of decision making and creating good 

places as it gives confidence for sustainable investment from residents and businesses.  

  

Recruitment and Retention  

  

4.23 The PAS report acknowledges that there are and have been ongoing efforts made to seek 

to improve the recruitment and retention of officers within the planning service. When 

carrying out the Planning Review programme the options for changing and evolving the 

service will have regard to all opportunities they also provide in terms of improving the 

career development of officers and to empower officers to take greater ownership of 

their work. In these regards the potential changes being considered in respect of 

delegated authority offer a significant opportunity to enhance the role of officers in the 

planning decision making process. There will though need to be appropriate training 

put in place to ensure that officers are suitably equipped to exercise greater delegated 

authority and have the skills necessary to work more autonomously.  

  

Setting and Communicating Service Provision and Decisions    

  

4.24 The Planning Review project will review the form that the pre-application processes take 

in the new operating model to ensure that it includes community and Member 

involvement as set out in paragraphs 4.12 and 4.13. As part of this process officers will 

review the way in which the benefits of pre-application advice and Planning 

Performance Agreements are communicated to applicants and their professional 

representatives. The introduction of more formalised processes to ensure community 

and Member involvement at pre-application stage will assist in developing a framework 

that provides a clear demonstration to applicants of the benefits of seeking 

preapplication advice. Pre-application advice is currently offered on the basis of a 

‘sliding scale’ with only written advice provided for small scale development with 

meetings and written responses provided only for larger scale developments, with the 

fee amount increased set accordingly. The review of the pre-application processes will 

consider whether this model remains appropriate or whether a more customer focused 

model should be adopted with the pre-applicant determining the level of service the 

wish to pay for.  

  

4.25 Likewise the service offered to applicants entering into a PPA will also be reviewed to 

make the service that is offered more tangible and structured so that the value that is 

derived from PPAs is apparent to applicants. The review of PPAs is likely to consider 

the model wording for PPAs and at what stage in the planning process they are entered 

into. At present they are typically entered into at the point at which an application is 

submitted, but they could be used to better effect for both parties if entered into earlier 

in the planning process, for example at pre-application stage.  

  

4.26 In tandem with the review of the pre-application advice service and the PPA service the 

opportunity will be taken to ensure that the fees charged for these services are reflective 

of the full cost of providing these services.  

  

4.27  The Planning Review project includes a dedicated workstream focused on enhancing 

digital inclusion. This will review options to enhance the content of the planning section 

of the Council’s website, as well as considering how the planning process and planning 

decisions can be better communicated to stakeholders.   

  

Page 46



4.28  Initial measures to better communicate the planning process to applicants and 

stakeholders digitally were previously implemented with the introduction in October 

2017 of e-notifications to applicants of significant planning application milestones (e.g. 

validation of application, end of consultation period etc.). Since the PAS Review this 

has been supplemented by the introduction in January 2019 on a trial basis of an 

enotification service to allow stakeholders who choose to create an account on the 

Council’s website to receive notification of all future applications on a specified site or 

within a geographical area that they specify. The initial take-up of this service, which 

has not received significant publicity due to it being introduced on a trial basis, is set 

out in the table below. Following the end of the initial 6-month trial period, it is expected 

that the Planning Review programme will seek to ensure that the availability of this 

service is more clearly advertised as part of the Council’s digital ‘offer’. For example, 

the service could be actively promoted to residents and businesses as part of other 

online processes and interactions (e.g. at the end of online payment for parking permits 

etc.).  

  

Month  Number of  

Subscriptions/ 

Accounts  

Total   

January  10   10  

February  23   33  

March  17   50  

April  33   83  

May  13   96  

  

  

5. Financial Implications   

   

5.1 The implications will be managed within existing resources.  

   

6. Legal Implications   

   

6.1 None.  

   

7.   Conclusion   

   

7.1     From the above update, it will be noted that considerable work has already been 

undertaken to enable the delivery of improvements to the processes and practices of 

the planning service to address the findings of the review carried out by the Planning 

Advisory Service (PAS), as endorsed by Cabinet on 25 October 2018. Members are 

also asked to note the ongoing work on the Planning Review project to deliver further 

positive change and enhancements to the current processes and practices of the 

planning service, including facilitating improved pre-application engagement with the 

community and Members and review of the delegation arrangements for planning 

decisions.   

   

  

  

  

If you have any questions about this report, or wish to inspect one of the 

background papers, please contact: Oliver Gibson  

Page 47



(ogibson@westminster.gov.uk / 020 7641 2680)   

  

  

  

  

Appendices:  

1. Draft version of updated ‘Guidance for Members – Making Planning Decisions’ guidance 

document.  

2. Report to the Planning and City Development Committee dated 17 January 2019 and 

minutes.  

3. Report to Cabinet on Planning Review dated 25 October 2018 and associated resolution 

and appendix.  

Page 48



  
 

 
Planning & City Development Committee 

Date: 7 November 2019 
  
Classification: General Release 
  
Title: Revised Guidance For Members Making Planning Decisions 
  
Report of: Director of Place Shaping and Town Planning 
  
Financial Summary: The implications will be managed within existing 
resources. 
  
Report Author and Contact Details: Oliver Gibson (ogibson@westminster.gov.uk/ 020 7641 
2680) 
 
 
1.  Executive Summary  
  
1.1 This report provides an update on the revised ‘Guidance for Members Making Planning 

Decisions’ document, which is designed to help Members of the Planning Applications 
Sub-Committees to understand their responsibilities and to enable them to make robust 
and consistent planning decisions. The guidance document was revised and updated 
by the Legal Services in early 2019 following the Planning Advisory Service (PAS) 
Review of the planning service in 2018 and the recommendations made by Cabinet on 
25 October 2018, following the conclusion of the PAS Review. The revised and updated 
guidance document was reported to the Standards Committee on 12 July 2019, which 
endorsed the updated document, with only minor amendments recommended. The 
recommended amendments have now been incorporated into the finalised version of 
the guidance. The finalised guidance document is provided at Appendix 1. 

 
2.  Recommendation  
  
2.1 Members are asked to note and have regard to the revised and updated ‘Guidance for 

Members Making Planning Decisions’ dated 31 July 2019 when carrying out their role 
as a member of one of the Planning Applications Sub-Committees. 

  
3.        Background  
  
3.1  The update and revision of the ‘Guidance for Members Making Planning Decisions’ 

document forms part of the wider Planning Review programme which seeks to address 
the key findings of the Planning Advisory Service (PAS), which informed the 
recommendations that made by the Chief Executive to Cabinet on 25 October 2018, 
which the Cabinet resolved to endorse. The update and revision of the guidance 
provided for Members specifically addresses two of the Cabinet’s recommendations, 
namely: (1) to restate to officers and Members their responsibilities in terms of the 
Council’s gifts and hospitality policies, and (2) to restate to officers and elected 
Members involved in the planning process that they must retain a distance from land 

Page 49

Agenda Item 5



 

owners, applicants, agents and community stakeholders other than at formally 
arranged visits and meetings. 

 
4.  Considerations  
 
4.1 The ‘Guidance for Members Making Planning Decisions’ document has been revised 

and updated throughout, but with specific regard being had to clarity and robustness of 
the guidance it provides on responsibilities around gifts and hospitality and in relation 
to the relationship Members have with those involved in the development industry and 
community stakeholders. The updated guidance is designed to ensure that decisions 
are taken in a robust, transparent way to provide high levels of integrity to the process.  

 
4.2 To achieve this the guidance document has been reordered to place the chapter on 

‘Good Practice in Planning’ at the beginning of the document, giving it and its enhanced 
content much greater prominence. This emphasises the value of high standards of 
probity to the integrity of the decision making system, underlining the strong 
relationship between a high standard of decision making and the creation of good 
places, which gives confidence for continued sustainable investment from residents 
and businesses.  

 
4.3 The ‘Good Practice in Planning’ chapter includes more detailed advice than was 

previously the case on the acceptance of gifts and hospitality and recommends that 
Members be mindful, not only of whether the acceptance of gifts or hospitality is lawful, 
but also whether acceptance may give rise to an adverse perception, either fairly or 
unfairly. The wider advice on Members conduct in planning matters, including 
disclosable pecuniary interest/s and non-pecuniary or other interests, bias and 
predetermination, site Inspections, decisions contrary to officers’ recommendations 
and development impacting on persons know to Members, have also been 
strengthened to ensure that the expected behaviours of Members of the Planning 
Applications Sub-Committees are clear. The general principles such as making 
decisions with an open mind, absence of predisposition and focusing on material 
planning matters are reinforced through the updated guidance. 

 
4.4 The guidance has also been updated throughout the rest of the document to ensure 

advice on procedural issues is correct and up to date with current processes and Town 
and Country Planning legislation. Similarly, the guidance on how Members will be 
advised at Sub-Committees and in reports presented to them has been updated to 
include recent changes to Sub-Committee procedures, such as the introduction of 
public speaking. 

 
4.5 It should be noted that the updated guidance should be read in conjunction with the 

Members Code of Conduct and extant protocols and procedures for other aspects of 
the planning process, such as the protocol for Member involvement at pre-application 
stage governing requests for meetings with developers (April 2019).  

 
5.  Financial Implications  
  
5.1  The implications will be managed within existing resources. 
  
6.  Legal Implications  
  
6.1  None. 
  
7.  Conclusion  
  

Page 50



 

7.1     Members should ensure that they conduct themselves in accordance with the revised 
and updated ‘Guidance for Members Making Planning Decisions’ dated 31 July 2019 
when carrying out their role as a member of the Planning Applications Sub-
Committees. 

  
 
 

 
If you have any questions about this report, or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers, please contact: Oliver Gibson 
(ogibson@westminster.gov.uk / 020 7641 2680). 
 

 

Background Papers:  

1. ‘Guidance for Members Making Planning Decisions’ document dated 31 July 2019. 

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS 

 

Making Planning Decisions 
 

 
 

Growth Planning and Housing 2019 
 
  

Page 53



 2 

INTRODUCTION 
 
These guidelines have been produced to help Members of the Planning Applications 
Committees to make robust and consistent planning decisions. They are supplemented by 
Member training programmes for both induction of new Members of Planning Committees 
to ongoing guidance for incumbent Members on a topic basis. 
 
These guidelines do not seek to be comprehensive. Much more information on town 
planning material considerations and procedural matters can be found in our published 
guidance leaflets, together with advice from central government on the National Planning 
Policy Framework, Planning Practice Guidance and the Localism Act.  However, if you 
have any queries or concerns, please discuss them with officers. Contact names and 
numbers are given at the end of this document. Appendix 1 provides some broad 
information upon some of the issues that may arise at Committee such as what is 
permitted development and the use classes order.  
 
The Town Planning Service deals with all planning applications, planning appeals against 
our decisions, the enforcement of planning control, conservation and design work, the 
production of information publications, maintenance of the statutory register of planning 
applications, responses to land search inquiries and general planning inquiries. The 
service also deals with works to trees and Tree Preservation Order matters. 
 
Planning applications must be decided in the context of published planning policies. The 
City Council’s policies are prepared by City Policy and Strategy, which is part of Policy 
Performance and Communications Service.  The law requires planning decisions to be 
made in accordance with the policies ‘unless material considerations indicate otherwise’. 
 
We attach great importance to consulting the public and local amenity societies and taking 
their comments into account.  However, the way we work, and the way you take decisions, 
is governed by strict rules about what can and cannot be considered. Importantly, our work 
is also affected by the need to meet targets for the number of decisions we make within 
the time periods required by Government.  
These are: 
 
- 16 weeks for cases that need an ‘Environmental Impact Statement’; 
- 13 weeks for major cases; and  
- 8 weeks for the rest.   
 
The priority we must give to meeting these targets limits the extent of our negotiation with 
developers once they have submitted their application. However, we encourage 
developers to enter pre-application discussions.  
Any comments you have on these guidelines would be appreciated and will be taken on 
board when they are next updated 
 
Deidra Armsby  
 
 
(JA Finalised Version) 

 
 
 

   

Page 54



 3 

 
CONTENTS  

 
  

  
1. GOOD PRACTICE IN PLANNING 
The Code of Conduct 
Conducts and Interests 
Pecuniary Interests 
Non-pecuniary interests  
Bias and predetermination 
Gifts and Hospitality  
Site Inspections 
Decisions contrary to officers’ recommendations 
Development proposals submitted by, or which may have an impact 
on, Councillors, their families or close associates  
 
 

5 
5 
6 
6 
6 
7 
7 
8 
8 
8 

2. COMMITTEE STRUCTURE 9 
The Planning Applications Committees 9 
Decisions delegated to specified officers 10 
  
3. COMMITTEE PROCEDURES 10 
The Director’s reports 10 
Officers attending Committee 
Public Speaking at Committee                                                                                                                                                                           

11 
11 

Making a decision 12 
Overturning a recommendation 13 
  
4. OTHER TYPES OF APPLICATIONS 14 
Listed building consent 14 
Advertisement control 
Planning Enforcement 

15 
15 

  
5. MAKING PLANNING DECISIONS 16 

 

 National Planning Policy 16 

 Westminster Planning Framework: 

 London Plan 

 Major Applications Referred to the Mayor 

 Westminster’s Local Plan  

 Draft City Plan  

 Neighbourhood Plans 

 Supplementary Planning Documents 

 Statement of Community Involvement  

16 
17 
17 
18 
18 
18 
19 
19 

                                                                                     
Material considerations   

 National planning policy and guidance 19 

 Third party interests 20 

 Moral considerations 20 

 Financial considerations 20 

Page 55



 4 

 Personal considerations 21 

 
Consistency of decisions                                                                                                         

 

A Summary of Do’s and Don’ts 21 
  
6. CONDITIONS IMPOSED ON PLANNING PERMISSIONS 23 
  
7. PLANNING OBLIGATIONS (SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS) 24 
Introduction 24 
Acceptable planning obligations 25 
Summary of Do’s and Don’ts 26 
  
8. APPEALS AND AWARDS OF COSTS 27 

 
  
9 LIST OF CONTACTS  29 

 
 

  
Appendix 1  30 
  
  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 56



 5 

 
 

1.  GOOD PRACTICE IN PLANNING  
 
In dealing with planning matters, it is of utmost importance that you become familiar with 
and adhere to the requirements of the Members’ Code of Conduct.  Any failure by you to 
comply with the ethical standards expected of you may result in a complaint and 
investigation for the breach of the Code and in certain circumstances, result in you being 
required to step down or may otherwise have serious ramifications for the reputation of the 
Council as a whole.   

 

You must not only approach decisions with impartiality but must also have the appearance 
of impartiality.  You must be free of bias and not be pre-determined although legitimate 
predisposition is lawful. Not complying with these requirements may provide grounds on 
which applicants may challenge affected decisions.  Public confidence in the way in which 
decision-making is conducted is of considerable importance.  

 

The Code of Conduct  

 

You should also be aware of and adhere to the following general principles, which are 
applicable to all public office holders:  

(i) Selflessness (acting in the public interest and not for any financial gain or similar benefit 
for themselves, friends or family); 

(ii) Integrity (not placing oneself under any actual or perceived financial or other obligation 
to outside individuals or organisations that may seek to influence their decisions); 

(iii) Objectivity (selecting public appointments, awarding contracts or recommending 
individuals for benefits or rewards should be based upon merit); 

(iv) Accountability (being accountable for decisions and actions to the public and 
submitting themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office); 

(v) Openness (acting in a manner that is as open as possible about the decisions and 
actions they take, providing the reasons for their decisions and restricting information only 
where the wider public interest clearly demands it); 

(vi) Honesty (being under a duty to declare any private interests relating to their public 
duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects the public 
interest); 

(vi) Leadership (promoting and supporting these principles by leadership and example). 

 
These considerations and general principles must be borne in mind, even when actively 
engaging in development proposals as enabled by the Localism Act 2011. It should be 
noted that the Localism Act 2011 expressly provides that a member will not be taken to 
have had (or appeared to have had) a closed mind just because they had previously done 
anything that directly or indirectly indicated the member’s view on a matter which was 
relevant to a decision.  However, this does not detract from the general importance of 
approaching decisions with an open mind.  You should remember that your overriding duty 
is to the whole community.  You should not favour or appear to favour any person, group, 
company or locality.  You should make planning decisions openly, impartially, with sound 
judgement and for justifiable reasons. 

 

Page 57



 6 

Conduct and Interests 
 
This Guidance is complementary to the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct. Members 
should apply both the Council’s general Members’ Code of Conduct and this Guidance in 
dealing with planning issues.  
 
All Members are always bound by the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct (‘the Code’) 
and are acting in their official capacity. It will therefore apply regardless of what capacity a 
Member approaches a planning matter. If a Member has an interest (as defined by the 
Code) in any matter the existence and nature of the interest must be disclosed at any 
relevant meeting at the beginning of the meeting. 

Where a Member is in any doubt about whether they have an interest and whether it 
needs declaring they are advised to always seek the advice of the Director of Law or other 
relevant officers and to disclose all material facts if possible at least 2 days prior to the 
committee meeting to allow sufficient time for relevant information to be gathered and 
considered. The responsibility to declare and the decision as to whether an interest should 
be disclosed and whether to withdraw from the meeting because of any declared interest 
rests with the Member. 

Where a Member has a relevant interest either pecuniary or non-pecuniary the nature of 
which means the public would consider that the Member could not be objective about the 
matter they should: 
 
 ask another ward Member to represent ward or local views on such a matter;  
 make sure s/he does not get involved in the processing of the application by using their 

position as a Member to obtain personal access to officers or papers;  
 not lobby other Members including via the circulation of letters or emails or by raising 

the matter in political group or similar meetings;  
 not in any way take part in the decision-making.  

 

Pecuniary interests  
 
Members are referred to the Code for definitions of interests but importantly if the Member 
has a pecuniary interest they may not participate in making the decision either formally or 
informally behind the scenes. The Member should also avoid giving any appearance of 
participation as it is important to maintain public confidence in the impartiality of Members 
in decision-making. Taking part whilst having a pecuniary interest is a criminal offence. 
  
Non-pecuniary interests 
  
Any interest that does not amount to a pecuniary interest, but which would have a 
significant impact upon a Member’s judgement should be declared by the Member at a 
meeting where that interest is relevant. Whether such an interest should be declared is a 
matter for the Member’s own judgement having full regard to the facts. A planning 
application on a site near to the Member’s home is an example of a non-pecuniary 
interest. 
 
There are very likely to be interests which do not amount to a pecuniary interest but where 
the public expectation would be for the Member to not participate. This includes where an 
application is within a Member’s own ward. In such circumstances, to ensure that the 

Page 58



 7 

highest levels of probity and transparency are maintained, the Member should consider 
standing down from the committee (i.e. arranging a substitute Member from one of the 
other Planning Applications Sub-Committees for the whole of the committee meeting) or 
standing down for that item, particularly where they have had any engagement with, or 
received representations from the applicant, their representatives or objectors/ supporters 
or their representatives, either during or prior to the application. It falls to the Member in 
each case to make their individual judgment as to whether their participation is appropriate 
or not given the nature of the interest. Members are encouraged to declare an interest in a 
matter for reasons of good practice and transparency for the purposes of being as open as 
possible with the declaration having no impact on the Member’s participation.  
 
Bias and predetermination 
  
Members have a legal duty to avoid bias or the appearance of bias. Bias is the tendency to 
favour one side of an issue because of an irrelevant factor such as a close relationship 
with a party to the matter. Members also need to avoid predetermination in other words 
having a closed mind in a case. They should ensure they do not do or say anything which 
indicates that they have made their mind up on an application or policy matter before it 
comes before the Committee for example by stating in advance how they will vote. A 
Member voting on a planning matter must maintain an open and impartial approach and 
have regard to all material considerations and all the evidence before coming to their 
definitive conclusion.   
 
The Localism Act 2011 sets out what a court can take into account in considering whether 
bias and pre-determination has occurred.  Section 25 of the 2011 Act provides that a 
decision-maker is not to be taken to have had or appeared to have had a closed mind 
when making the decision just because they had previously done anything that directly or 
indirectly indicated what view they took or might take in relation to a matter.The aim is that 
Members act and are seen to act impartially and honestly by approaching each planning 
decision fairly between the parties and with an open mind. If a Member wishes to take a 
stance in relation to a development or feels that it will be difficult to demonstrate that they 
have followed a consistently fair approach between all parties in a case, they should not 
be part of the decision-making process on the application. In such an instance they can 
choose to act as a ward Member on that matter. Irrespective of whether a Member has a 
pecuniary interest in a planning matter they must not be involved in the decision-making if 
this would render such a decision liable to challenge in the courts on the grounds of bias or 
predetermination.  

 
Gifts and Hospitality 
  

Accepting gifts and hospitality in your capacity as Member is not unlawful. However, as a 
Member of Planning Application Committees, you must exercise extreme caution, given 
how it might be perceived by the public.  The best advice is to avoid accepting gifts and 
hospitality at any time during the planning process including after a decision is made but 
understandably refusal might be awkward at times. As a minimum you must be scrupulous 
in declaring gifts and hospitality, as well as all disclosable pecuniary and non-pecuniary 
interests and if necessary, excuse yourself from planning committee or retire from 
consideration of a matter to avoid a conflict of interest.  Even where gifts and hospitality 
may be lawfully accepted, Members remain responsible for considering the propriety of 
doing so and declaring any such gifts and hospitality to avoid speculation and negative 
perception.   

Page 59



 8 

 

The obligations in the City Council’s Code of Conduct are placed on Members individually.  
You must consider whether your actions could lead to a perception, whether fairly or 
unfairly that may damage your reputation and/or that of the Council.  You should always 
be aware of whether your conduct promotes and supports high standards of conduct 
through leadership and by example.   

 

In considering these matters, you should have regard to the value of any benefit received, 
the number or frequency of such benefits and the connection between the benefits 
received and planning decisions that you will be involved in making.  In some 
circumstances, actions that are neither unlawful nor breach the Code of Conduct will be 
inappropriate from the point of view of the Council’s reputation.  

 
In accepting any gift, benefit or hospitality Members should consider the following 
principles to guide them, as suggested by the Committee in Standards in Public Life and 
adopted in the Members’ Code of Conduct:  
 

“Purpose” – acceptance should be in the interests of Council departments and should 
further Council objectives  
 

“Proportionality” – hospitality should not be over-frequent or over-generous. Accepting 
hospitality frequently from the same organisation/ individual may lead to an impression that 
the organisation/ individual is gaining influence. Similarly, hospitality should not seem 
lavish or disproportionate to the nature of the relationship with the provider  
 

“Avoidance of conflict of interest” Members should consider the provider’s relationship 
with the Council, whether it is bidding for work or grants or being investigated or criticised, 
and whether it is appropriate to accept an offer from a taxpayer-funded organisation”  

 

Under the Bribery Act 2010 it amounts to an offence to offer financial or other advantage 
to another person or to accept such an advantage if the receipt or anticipation of receipt of 
such an advantage would result in, be intended to result in, amount to, or be done in return 
for the improper performance of a public function. In this case, the public function to be 
properly performed is the lawful determination of planning applications.  

 

If for any reason you are unclear about what is expected of you, you are advised to seek 
advice from in the first instance the Director of Place Shaping and Town Planning before 
taking action or accepting gifts or hospitality.  

 

Site Inspections 

 

The Committee may resolve to make a site inspection before reaching a decision. In such 
cases these are fact finding exercises and not opportunities for applicants and objectors to 
lobby the members. You should refrain from giving views to either party. If you choose to 
make your own site visit prior to the committee meeting you should do so alone and should 
rely on street views only. If you meet an objector or the applicant on site, by accident or 
design, you should not sit on the determining committee. To do so would be to invite 
criticism that you have offered one party an unfair advantage.    

Page 60



 9 

 

Decisions contrary to Officers’ Recommendation 

 

Planning decisions must be made in accordance with the ‘development plan’ unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise.  Decisions must be capable of being 
substantiated so, in the interests of openness and clarity, the reasons for a planning 
decision contrary to the officers’ recommendation should be discussed and clearly agreed 
and included in the minutes of the Committee meeting.  
 
Development proposals submitted by, or which may have an impact on Councillors, 
their families and their close associates 
 

It is important that applications submitted by Councillors and their close associates or 
which relate to sites affecting them/their close associates are processed without the 
suspicion of impropriety or favouritism. There is a box on the planning application forms 
which must be completed.   

 

The following advice is provided to assist Members in this situation: 

 
You should declare a pecuniary and non-pecuniary interest where under the Members' 
Code of Conduct your interest is such that a conflict of interest arises because of family 
links, business associations, social contacts, membership of clubs or similar associations, 
land ownership, tenancies and sponsorship. In these circumstances you must declare the 
nature of your interest and ensure that it is written into the minutes of the meeting and 
must leave the room without speaking or voting on the item. Where your interest under the 
Code is non-pecuniary subject to the guidance given at section above, you must declare it 
for the purposes of ensuring that it is entered the minutes of the meeting but may remain 
and take part in both speaking and voting on the item. 
 

Where you have applied or are aware that your immediate family members/other close 
associates have applied, you should advise the Director of Place Shaping and Town 
Planning or relevant Team Leader. 
 

Proposals submitted by you or your close associates will be presented to Committee for 
determination and will not be dealt with under delegated powers. 
 

If you have an interest whether pecuniary or otherwise in an application you should ensure 
that you do not try to use your position to seek to influence the officers’ recommendation or 
Committee Members’ decision in determining it, by avoiding direct negotiations with 
officers and lobbying of other Members and officers. Please see refer to the Good Practice 
in Planning. In the interests of probity, if you have business or other interests that may 
bring you into regular contact with the City Council’s planning system you should consider 
whether it is appropriate for you to sit on the Committee. 
 
If you ever have any concerns on issues relating to probity or declaration of interest, you 
should contact the Director of Law, who will be able to advise you. 

 
2.  COMMITTEE STRUCTURE 
 

Page 61



 10 

The Planning Applications Committees 

 

From January 2020 there will be four Committees held on Tuesdays at 6.30p.m. on the 
18th Floor of City Hall on a rota basis.  There will be a Planning (Major Applications) Sub-
Committee which comprises of seven members in total (5 from the majority party and 2 
from the minority party) and three Planning Applications Sub-Committee’s which comprise 
four members (3 Members of the majority party and 1 Member from the minority party). 
There is a total of 15 Members (3 of whom act as Chairman) who sit on the Sub-
Committees. 
 
The Sub-Committees consider planning and related applications which have generated 
public interest or concern or are of a major, controversial or sensitive nature or which, if 
approved, would set a significant precedent. Most applications are dealt with by officers 
under delegated powers. The Sub-Committees also decide on whether to confirm Tree 
Preservation Orders (TPOs) and have the power to approve highway works and stopping 
up orders required in connection with planning applications. 
 
The main Planning and City Development Committee, on which all members of the four 
Planning Applications Sub-Committees sit, meets on a quarterly basis. Its terms of 
reference include consideration of emerging local planning policy documents, including 
Planning Briefs/ Supplementary Planning Documents and making recommendations on 
them to the relevant Cabinet Member; oversight of the practices and procedures of the 
four Planning Applications Sub-Committees; and consideration and  recommendation of 
training programmes for members of the Sub-Committees .   

Decisions delegated to specified officers 

The Council receives about 200 applications a week and it would be impractical to report 
them all to the Committees for determination.  So, many minor and non-controversial 
applications are decided by specified senior officers acting under delegated powers and 
officers currently deal with 97% of applications by delegated powers. 
 
Members are sent a weekly list of planning applications received, and if you have any 
questions please contact the relevant team leader or the case officer. If you do decide to 
request that an application is reported to a Committee for determination rather than being 
dealt with under delegated powers, you will be expected to set out your reasons and you 
must attend the committee meeting in person to speak either for or against. If you cannot 
attend the meeting, you must send a substitute. 

 
 
3.  COMMITTEE PROCEDURES 
 
The Director’s Reports 
 
The agenda contains separate reports for all the applications that are to be considered.  
Each report starts with a table of information, a recommendation, a map and photo(s), 
several relevant drawings, a short summary and a list of consultees and their responses.  
It then describes the development proposals, details the relevant planning issues and 
policies and provides a justification for the officers’ recommendation.  Usually the 
recommendation is to either grant or refuse permission and is the professional advice of 

Page 62



 11 

the Town Planning service.  At the end of each report, the draft decision letter(s) sets out 
the conditions or reasons for refusal. 
 
The use of concise reports with clearly justified recommendations has been identified as 
good practice in various investigations into local government procedures.  It assists the 
debate on development proposals to proceed in a structured and disciplined manner. 
Importantly it provides evidence that the decision was made in a thorough, proper and 
considered way. 
 
Any report that asks the Committee to decide whether to confirm a Tree Preservation 
Order (TPO) is written by the Head of Legal Services.  This is because the original 
decision to make the TPO will normally have been made by the Director under delegated 
powers; the report to Committee asks Members to balance the reasons for the making of 
the order against the concerns of objectors to the Order.  The Committee, therefore, has a 
quasi-judicial role in these cases. A tree officer will be present, but only to answer 
technical questions, not to justify the making of the Order. 
 
Committee may also consider applications to fell TPO trees because they may be causing 
structural damage and there is a claim for compensation. Such cases are confidential as 
they raise financial implications for the Council. 
 
The agenda papers are usually sent to you on the Wednesday preceding the Tuesday 
Committee.  In addition to your agenda you will also receive a bundle of background 
papers (green front cover) which contain copies of the representations that have been 
received on the agenda items.  
 
Chairs of the Committee are advised of the numbers of people who have applied to speak 
at Committee by the Committee Officer normally on Friday afternoon once the deadline to 
register has closed. 
 
Late representations (blue front cover) will be sent to you in the Members’ Dispatch the 
Thursday before the meeting (these include any representations received after the 
committee report was written). Very late representations (red front cover) will be presented 
at the committee meeting by the presenting officer.  
 
Officers attending Committee 
 
The presenting officer gives a short presentation which describes the proposal, 
summarises the representations received, describes the impact of the development on 
neighbours and explains the relevant planning policies and the reason for the 
recommendation.  
 
We use several monitor screens to show drawings, photographs etc to the members of the 
Committee, with the images also being relayed to several large flat screens in the public 
gallery. 
 
The design officer at committee gives specialist urban design, architectural and 
conservation advice and answers your questions on these issues. 
 
The presiding officer is present to assist you with more difficult questions and give advice 
on strategic and corporate policy issues. This will be one of the Area Team Leaders. 

Page 63



 12 

 
A Legal officer will be in attendance to ensure legal issues can be fully addressed. 
 
Whenever there is a need for the availability of further expertise relevant officers (for 
example environmental Health officers, highways engineers) will attend to ensure that 
Members have a full range of advice and guidance to make robust decisions. 
 
Public Speaking at Committee  
 
We notify all those people who make representations including the agent that an 
application is going to Committee .If they wish to register to speak , this must be done on 
line  www.westminster,gov.uk/planning-committee and they must register by 12 noon on 
the Friday before the Committee . 
 
The Committee section will email the Chairman/Committee Members and the presiding 
officer the names of people who have registered to speak on Friday afternoon and whether 
speaking in support or against. 
 
It has been agreed that each individual speaker attending the Committees will have 3 
minutes to speak. 
 
Speakers at Major Applications Committee are capped at 2 for and 2 against. Sub-
Committee it is 1 speaker for and 1 against. If there are more speakers than slots more 
than one speaker they are asked to either nominate a person to speak on their behalf, or 
the slots will be divided. 
 
Ward Councillors and the local amenity society if they wish to speak at Committee must 
also register on line by Noon on Friday.  
 
Late representations to speak after the deadline will not normally be permitted.  
 
Speakers are invited after the officer’s presentation to sit at the desk and address the 
Committee. On our website is a list of the material planning considerations Committee can 
consider and those which cannot.   
 

Order of Business 

i) Planning Officers presentation of the case 

ii) Applicant/agent or other supporters   

iii) Objectors 

iv) Amenity Society (Recognised or Semi Recognised) 

v) Ward Councillor(s) and/or MP(s)  

vi) Council Officers response to verbal representations (if required)  

vii) Member discussion (including questions to officers for 
clarification) 

viii) Member vote  

 
Making a Decision 
 
The order of items on the agenda will have been arranged by officers, usually with the 
more major or contentious items at the start.  However, the Chairman will decide the order 

Page 64

http://www.westminster,gov.uk/planning-committee


 13 

in which the cases will be considered, and it depends on whether people have registered 
to speak   
 
It is usual for items where there are Ward Councillors present to be taken first, followed by 
items for which there are members of the public present. The presentation, therefore, is 
not always in agenda order.  Overall, the agenda usually comprises between 3 and 8 
items.  
  
You may agree or overturn the recommendation or may include additional conditions or 
agree the recommendation subject to a legal agreement if justified in planning terms. A 
decision on an item may also be deferred if you wish to visit the site, or consider that 
further consultations should be undertaken, additional information or clarity is required, or 
you wish officers to seek modifications to the scheme. Deferred decisions are generally 
brought back to same Committee for the decision. 
 
Draft decision letters are sent out with your Committee papers. Proposals to grant 
permission or listed building consent normally include several conditions attached, and 
these can cover design issues such as the submission of samples of materials and design 
details, controlling future uses, and limiting hours of building work. An informative is added 
to decision letters granting planning permission and listed building consent, which 
summarises the reasons for approval.   Decision letters which refuse planning 
permission/listed building consent must include reason(s) why the development is not 
acceptable. 
 
Overturning a Recommendation 
 
Sometimes you may not reach the same conclusions as officers and decide not to accept 
the recommendation, In making their recommendation, the case has been fully assessed 
by the professional planning officers and pursuant to Council’s policies. Decisions are 
subject to legal challenge and therefore care is required to ensure that such decisions are 
defendable at appeal or Judicial Review and there is the additional risk of a costs award 
against the Council where a decision is found to be unreasonable. Planning decisions are 
often difficult, they require the balancing of conflicting factors and judgement on the weight 
to be attached to different elements of the consideration. The Presiding Officer is there to 
assist you and you can ask their professional judgement. 
 
However, where you decide contrary to the officers’ recommendation, or impose additional 
conditions or reasons for refusal, you must give sound and clear-cut planning reasons 
for your decision. You do not have to agree the detailed wording for the extra condition or 
reason for refusal. This can be brought back for ratification later if necessary but is usually 
entrusted to senior officers to deal with under their delegated powers. However, you must 
make clear the planning reasons that have led to your decision. It is therefore essential 
that the grounds for the decision are given and minuted at the Committee meeting, 
particularly where the recommendation is overturned. 
 
Failure to do this would make it very difficult for the Council to defend its decision on 
appeal. It is also likely to lead to a claim for costs being made against the Council. 
(See section 8) and raises reputational issues for the Council. 
 
Members will be asked to vote in respect of the final recommendation by a show of hands. 
The Committee Chairman does have the casting vote. The vote is recorded in the 

Page 65



 14 

committee minutes. 
 
 

 
York Watergate, WC2 

 
 
 
4.  OTHER TYPES OF APPLICATIONS 
 
In addition to planning applications, the following types of applications are submitted under 
the Planning Acts. 
 
Listed Building Consent  
 
There is an enhanced procedure for proposals involving Listed buildings. Consent is 
required for most works (both internal and external) to a listed building. These applications 
may be submitted on their own where the works are purely internal, or in conjunction with 
planning applications when both internal and external work is proposed.  Most applications 
relating to Grade II listed buildings (the lowest grade) can be decided by the Council 
without formal clearance from Historic England, as with planning applications.  However, 
for applications involving demolition, and all applications affecting Grade 1 and Grade II* 
buildings, the City Council cannot issue a listed building consent until formally authorised 
to do so by Historic England. Committee Members are therefore not the sole decision 
makers in these cases. 
 
The main issues to be considered when dealing with listed building consent applications 
are the likely effects of the proposal on the architectural or historic qualities of the building.     
 
Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Area) Act states: 
 

“In considering whether to grant listed building consent for any works the local 
planning authority or the Secretary of State shall have special regard to the 

Page 66



 15 

desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses."  

 
  
In certain circumstances a further layer of decision making occurs as approval is required 
from the Secretary of State for the total demolition of a listed building and for any listed 
building application where the City Council itself is the applicant. 
 
The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Area) Act also gives guidance for 
situations where the Council is considering a planning application affecting a listed 
building.  Section 66(1) states: 

 
"In considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a 
listed building or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the 
Secretary of State shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the 
building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which 
it possesses." 

 
Advertisement consent 
 
Separate regulations cover the procedures and relevant considerations for 
advertisements, which include shop signs, blinds (with writing on) and estate agents' 
boards.  Most small scale, low level, non-illuminated signs do not require consent from the 
City Council. Material considerations in the determination of Consent are specifically 
limited to public safety or amenity. 
 
With respect to estate agents' boards, the City Council has several specially designated 
areas (‘Regulation 7 Areas’) where no signs advertising residential properties are allowed, 
and where we will only permit signs on commercial properties when the detailed design 
accords with an agreed code and for a limited six-month period. 
 
Planning Enforcement 
 
Local planning authorities provide planning enforcement services which are a vital part of 
the planning process. By identifying and tackling cases of unauthorised development, the 
enforcement process ensures fairness, stops unacceptable development and gives 
communities confidence in the system. The Localism Act 2011 gave new powers to local 
planning authorities by extending the time available to them to investigate cases where 
unauthorised development has been deliberately concealed.  
 
Although effective planning enforcement is fundamental to the integrity of the system, 
responses to breaches of planning control should always be proportionate. Where work has 
been undertaken without the necessary permission, there is scope to apply retrospectively 
for planning permission, and we do request that applicants apply to regularise the situation.  
 
These powers do not condone development being undertaken without the correct 
permissions, but they do enable local authorities to use their planning enforcement powers 
proportionately.  
 
Because of an enforcement investigation, a retrospective application is made. In determining 
such applications at committee members must ensure that the same process of ensuring a 

Page 67



 16 

robust and consistent decision is made The fact that unauthorised works have taken place 
does not change the range of material considerations that determine the decision. The 
application must be determined on its planning merits and its retrospective status is NOT in 
itself a material consideration. 
  
  
5.  MAKING PLANNING DECISIONS 
 
Planning applications are determined in accordance with the statutory development plan, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The planning system is plan led which 
means that compliance with planning policy is paramount For Westminster the statutory 
development plan consists of Westminster’s City Plan 2016, the Unitary Development 
Plan, the London Plan and any neighbourhood plans. The scope of what can constitute a 
material consideration is very wide, so long as they relate to land use in the public interest, 
so that the protection of purely private interests such as the impact of a development on 
the value of a neighbouring property or loss of private rights to light are not material 
considerations. It is for the decision maker to decide what weight is to be given to the 
material considerations in each case. 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
 
In July 2018, the Government published an updated version of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF). This sets out national planning policies for England. It makes clear that 
the purpose of planning is to help achieve sustainable development, covering economic, 
social and environmental aspects. It covers both plan-making and the taking of planning 
decisions. The policies in it must be considered in preparing Local Plans and neighbourhood 
plans and it is a ‘material consideration’ in deciding planning applications. However, it does 
not dictate how local and neighbourhood plans should be written or planning outcomes but 
is rather a framework for their preparation – we must have regard to what it says but can 
depart from it where there are sound reasons for doing so.   
 
The recently revised NPPF is a shorter document, and again it is strongly focused in favour 
of sustainable development and the delivery of more housing. 
 
The NPPF is backed by detailed national guidance on topics brought together in National 
Planning Practice Guidance. This, for example, deals with the specific requirements around 
securing affordable housing and administration of the Community Infrastructure Levy.  
 
Westminster’s Planning Framework 
 
The diagram below shows the documents which make up Westminster’s Local planning 
policy – each element is explained in more detail below. 

Page 68



 17 

 
 
The London Plan 
 
In London the Mayor remains responsible for producing a strategic plan for the capital, in 
the form of his “spatial development strategy” - commonly known as the London Plan. The 
London Plan provides London boroughs with an overarching framework for their local plans, 
helping them to tackle strategic as well as local issues effectively. Local Plans in London 
need to be in line with (in ‘general conformity’ with) the London Plan, which also guide 
decisions on planning applications by London borough councils and the Mayor as it forms 
part of the statutory development plan. Policies in the London Plan are therefore a material 
consideration in the determination of planning applications.  The current London Plan was 
adopted in 2016. 
 
There have been several major changes to the London Plan following the election of the 
new Mayor. Consultation of the draft London Plan finished in March 2018 and the 
examination in public opened in January 2019 and is likely to report in Autumn 2019. It is a 
material consideration in the determination of planning applications and can be given some 
weight due to its submission to the Secretary of State for examination in January 2019. The 
Mayor has produced several supplementary planning documents and of relevance to 
Westminster are: 
 

Culture & the Night-time Economy Nov 2017 
Affordable Housing &Viability August 2017  
 

Major Applications Referred to the Mayor  
 
Several major planning applications are referable to the Mayor (developments over 30 m in 
height, over 150 residential units or on Metropolitan Open Land). The initial consultation 

Page 69



 18 

which is undertaken when the application is received is known as Stage 1 referral and is 
referenced in Committee reports. Following the Committee Council resolution, the 
application is referred to the Mayor known as Stage 2. The Mayor has 14 days to produce 
his Stage 2 report and can either be content for the Council to issue approval, or he can 
direct refusal or call in the application to be determined by the GLA. The mayor does 
exercise this power.  
 
Westminster’s Local Plan 
 
Local Plans are the key documents through which local planning authorities can set out a 
vision and framework for the future development of the area, engaging with their 
communities in doing so. Local Plans address needs and opportunities in relation to issues 
such as housing, the local economy, community facilities and infrastructure. They should 
safeguard the environment, enable adaptation to climate change and help secure high 
quality accessible design. The Local Plan provides a degree of certainty for communities, 
businesses and investors, and a framework for guiding decisions on individual planning 
applications.  
 
Producing the Local Plan is a shared endeavour – led by the Council but in collaboration 
with local communities, developers, landowners and other interested parties.  
 
Westminster’s local plan is the City Plan which was adopted in November 2016. In 
conjunction with the City Plan saved Unitary Development Plan (UDP) policies (adopted 
2007) are also used to determine planning applications. The saved UDP policies are 
increasingly outdated and must be replaced by up-to-date detailed development 
management policies – if not there is the risk that they will be given less weight by inspectors 
at appeal or by the Mayor and ministers in taking planning decisions affecting Westminster. 
 
Draft City Plan  
 
The City Council is currently working on a review of its City Plan. Informal consultation on 
the first draft of the City plan 2019-2040 took place in November and December 2018. 
Following this informal consultation, any representations received were considered and the 
draft plan has been revised. Formal consultation under Regulation 19 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 was undertaken in June 
and July 2019. Following Regulation 19 consultation, the City Council published the latest 
version of the draft City Plan and all accompanying papers on 28 October 2019 and this 
version will be considered by Full Council on Wednesday 13 November 2019. Subject to 
consideration and approval of the draft City Plan by Full Council on 13 November 2019, the 
City Plan and accompanying papers will be submitted for examination by an inspector on 
behalf of the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government . The emerging 
draft City Plan is at an early stage in the adoption process and therefore the policies in  it 
are to be given limited weight. 
 
Neighbourhood Plans 
 
Neighbourhood planning gives communities direct power to develop a shared vision for their 
neighbourhood and shape the development and growth of their local area. Communities can 
prepare plans with legal weight as part of the statutory development plan and can grant 
planning permission for the development they wish to see through a ‘neighbourhood 
development order’.  

Page 70



 19 

 
In Westminster there are 20 designated Neighbourhood Areas, The Knightsbridge 
Neighbourhood Plan has been recently adopted (December 2018) and is a material 
consideration in determining planning applications in Knightsbridge Neighbourhood Area. 
You will see reference to Neighbourhood Plans in the committee reports. 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) expand on adopted planning policy to provide 
more detailed information that can be contained in the policies themselves. They give 
guidance to the public, applicants and developers when making planning applications. In 
some cases they may set out how policies apply to a particular site. 
 
SPDs do not have the same status as the policies within the Development Plan but have 
been subject to public consultation and are taken into account as material considerations in 
dealing with planning applications. They have to be consistent with adopted local plan 
policies and cannot be used to make new policy. 
 
Westminster has adopted a number of SPDs which are either topic based (e.g. basement 
development, design matters, statues and monuments etc), conservation area audits or 
planning briefs. 28 or Westminster’s 40 adopted supplementary documents (some are called 
supplemetary planning guidance, or SPGs) were published prior to the adoption of the 
Unitary Development Plan in 2007 and could therefore be challenged for their relevance. A 
review of the SPD’s will be carried out this year. However, they can be referred to in 
Committee reports. 
 
Statement of Community Involvement 
 
The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) sets out how the council will involve the 
community in the planning process. It sets out the principles for consultation on planning 
policy documents and for development. For the purposes of Committee reports, 
consultation procedures and obligations are carried out on Planning proposals in line with 
legislation and any additional requirements from the SCI.  
 
Material Planning Considerations  
 
This section examines what you should, and should not, consider when deciding planning 
applications. 
 
In addition to the development plan, it is very important that any other ‘material 
considerations’ are considered.  The case law on what is or is not ‘material’ under the 
planning acts is complex, and officers will give guidance on these matters in reports and at 
Committee. 
 
Nevertheless, there are some issues (prevention of loss of residential accommodation, 
protection of historic buildings) where the Secretary of State and the Courts recognise that 
there should always be a strong presumption in favour of the policy as they are clearly 
interests of importance.  Below are some notes on some of the matters that may arise: 
 
National Planning Policy and Guidance.  
 

Page 71



 20 

The Government’s planning policies for England are set out in the revised National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (published in February 2019).  The NPPF essentially 
introduced a presumption in favour of sustainable development and makes it clear that the 
Government expects planning applications to be granted unless there are very good 
reasons to the contrary. It provides a framework within which local people and their 
councils can produce their own local and neighbourhood plans, which reflect the needs 
and priorities of their local communities.   
 
Third Party Interest. 
 
Planning is concerned with protecting the public interest, and not with the protection of the 
private interests of one person against the activities of another.  For example, the effect of 
a proposed development on a neighbouring property in terms of the light it receives as a 
result, or the privacy of the occupiers, is a valid planning consideration but judged on the 
basis of fact and degree as it relates to the quality of the community’s living environment. 
However, the financial implications for the neighbour in terms of the value of their property 
or the effect of any competition on their business, are not valid planning considerations. 
 
Moral Considerations. 
 
It is not acceptable in law to refuse permission for a use on the basis of a moral objection.  
Permission could, however, be refused should the use be contrary to a planning policy that 
aims to protect the character and function of an area.  Thus, a betting shop or a sex shop 
cannot be refused purely claiming it is not considered to be a desirable use, nor claiming 
there are already several others nearby.  However, if a proposed betting office would 
displace a use that serves a useful local function or would lead to an imbalance in the 
range of shops and services that is detrimental to the character of the area, then refusal 
could possibly be sustained because they are embedded in the policy framework 
 
Note that uses which may provoke objections on moral grounds e.g. sex shops, also 
require licences from the Licensing Sub-Committee where wider issues may be 
considered. 
 
Financial Considerations  
 
This is most likely to arise when applicants propose to offer less affordable housing than 
our policy sets out to achieve. Our usual practice is to commission an independent viability 
appraisal. Recommendations to committee will be based on the outcome of this 
independent study. If you wish to see the full viability reports, please contact the 
presiding/presenting officer prior to the committee meeting.  
 
The City Council requires that applicant’s viability assessment should be prepared on the 
basis that it will be made publicly available other than in exceptional circumstances. A 
redacted version is submitted and uploaded on our website. 
 
Financial considerations are gaining in prominence as the NPPF urges a positive 
approach to economic growth and the Mayor is also carrying out a second viability 
assessment on Stage 2 referrals and introducing post viability reviews on major schemes. 
There is a fine balance to be reached in respect of applications which raise viability issues. 
 
Personal Considerations.  

Page 72



 21 

 
The identity of a developer or occupier is not usually a material consideration as planning 
permission relates to the property and normally continues whoever owns or occupies that 
property.  Personal circumstances are sometimes put forward in support of planning 
applications, where it is argued that serious personal hardship will result if permission is 
refused. 
 
In the case of change of a use, it may be appropriate to take considerations of severe 
personal hardship or very special circumstances into account.  A change of use can be a 
temporary arrangement and permission, in exceptional circumstances, can be given 
specifically to an individual, or for a specified time, to expire when that person no longer 
requires the property for that purpose.  In the case of personal permissions, when the 
named person leaves the property, it has a ‘nil’ use (i.e. any future use requires the benefit 
of planning permission).  Temporary and personal permissions should be used with care 
as it is often difficult to ‘recover’ the original use or argue that continued use (or use by 
another person) would be harmful. These considerations will be fully explained in 
Committee reports. 
 
Consistency of Decisions 
 
The Committee must be consistent in the decisions it takes on similar cases in similar 
circumstances.  Planning authorities must behave equitably between applicants and must 
be seen to do so.  Personal circumstances would need to be very exceptional to justify 
treating similar applications differently. 
 
Inconsistent decisions can lead, at the very least, to an appeal being upheld, or the award 
of costs against the local authority for acting unreasonably. (More advice on costs at 
appeal is given later in this guidance note).  In extreme cases, the decision may be 
quashed in the Courts or be revoked by the Secretary of State, with the payment of 
compensation to the applicant. 
 
Any previous relevant planning decisions made in respect of the site or on nearby similar 
properties should be considered, as should relevant appeal decisions. 
 
A Summary of Dos and Don’ts 
 
It is important to remember that the Committees are meetings held in public There will be 
an audience with applicants and objectors present to listen to the discussion of their 
application, and notes may be taken of the proceedings. The applicant, their agents, local 
amenity societies, residents and Ward Councillors can now register to speak at the 
committee meetings. The meeting is also recorded. The Committee meetings will be live 
streamed shortly, and therefore it is important that meetings are conducted in a 
professional manner. Well conducted planning Committees provide confidence to 
residents and applicants to invest in the borough as they are symbolic of robust decision 
making. 
 
The substance of the discussion could be relevant in an appeal against the decision or a 
legal challenge. Issues discussed may also be referred to the Local Government 
Ombudsman if there is a charge of maladministration.  In extreme cases, there could also 
be claims of wilful misconduct by Members.  If upheld, such charges can lead to personal 
surcharge and disbarment from public office. 

Page 73



 22 

 
 
Here are the key dos and don'ts: 
 

DO HAVE REGARD TO: 
 

 The Development Plan (i.e. the City Plan /UDP and Regulation 19 
version of City Plan 2019 and existing and emerging London Plan and 
adopted neighbourhood Plans. 

 Central Government guidance  

 Other material considerations set out in the report. 

 Relevant comments made by residents and other consultees- where 
they raise legitimate planning grounds/ degree of harm   

 Consistency of decisions 

 Giving clear planning reasons for overturning an officer’s 
recommendation 

 Giving clear reasons for an application’s deferral and thereafter its 
decision-making route 

 Declaring any interests, you may have that could affect your 
impartiality 

 
 

DO NOT HAVE REGARD TO: 
 

 Matters raised in representations that are not pertinent to planning 
such as loss of property values or covered by other legislation 

 Whether the application is retrospective    

 Other uses that would be preferred**    

 Matters covered by other legislation such as licensing (although there 
will be overlaps)    

 Moral considerations                

 The identity of the applicant (in most cases) 

 Private interests such as party wall matters, disputes between owners, 
(unless coinciding with the public interest)  
  

** Other uses you would prefer to see are not material considerations. You must 
judge the submitted application on its own planning merits. 

 
 
 
IN CONSIDERING APPLICATIONS WHERE A DECISION WAS PREVIOUSLY 
DEFERRED BY COMMITTEE, DO HAVE REGARD TO:  
 

Page 74



 23 

 Only those matters for which the application was deferred – generally it 
will not be appropriate to re-open matters that were previously 
considered and agreed by an earlier committee 

 New representations received, particularly those that relate to the 
matters for which the application was deferred 

 Any new matters raised as a direct result of a revised proposal 

 
 

 
St James’s Park, SW1 
 
6.  CONDITIONS IMPOSED ON PLANNING PERMISSIONS 
 
Local authorities have the power to impose such conditions as they think fit on planning 
permissions to make otherwise unacceptable development acceptable.  Such conditions 
must, however, comply with the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework 
and the associated advice on the use of planning conditions in the Government’s Planning 
Practice Guidance.  Planning conditions should only be imposed where they are: 
 

Necessary – would the development be unacceptable without the condition? 
 
Relevant to planning – the condition must relate to planning objectives and be within 
the scope of the permission to which it is attached. It should not be used to control 
matters which can be regulated under other legislation. 
 
Relevant to the development to be permitted – the condition should directly relate to 
the development that is the subject of the permission.  It is not, for example, acceptable 
to use the opportunity of a planning permission to obtain some improvement which is 
not necessitated by the proposed development. 
 
Enforceable – a condition should not be imposed if it cannot be enforced by the local 
authority: e.g. where it would be impossible to detect a contravention or remedy any 
breach of condition, or where it concerns matters over which the applicant has no 
control). 
 

Page 75



 24 

Precise – the condition should be clearly worded so the developer is in no doubt as to 
what must be done to comply with it.  Qualitative terms such as 'tidy' or 'nuisance' 
require interpretation.   
 
Reasonable in all other respects – a condition should not be so restrictive that it 
nullifies the benefit of the planning permission or places unjustifiable/disproportionate 
burdens on the applicant: e.g. one that imposes unrealistic opening hours.  Conditions 
that require liability for works such as maintenance would also be unreasonable.   
 

It must always be remembered that applicants can appeal to the Secretary of State against 
the imposition of any condition, so care should be taken that conditions meet all the above 
tests. 
 
The City Council uses many standard conditions and informatives and if you require any 
further information please contact the Team Leader. 
 
You may also see reference to a condition (known as a ‘Grampian Condition’) that 
prevents any works commencing until appropriate arrangements are in place to secure the 
agreed planning benefits from a Section 106 Agreement  To comply with the requirements 
of the condition, the applicant will usually have to complete a Section 106 agreement to 
discharge this condition prior to starting works on site. 
From 1 October 2018, any Pre-Commencement Condition now needs the applicants' 
written agreement and they are given 10 days’ notice. If an applicant fails to agree to a 
pre-commencement condition, we can refuse planning permission. You will see reference 
to these pre-commencement conditions in the Committee reports  
 
7.  PLANNING OBLIGATIONS (SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS) 
 
Introduction 
 
A planning obligation can involve a legal agreement between the Council and the applicant 
(and others) or can be offered by the applicant unilaterally.  It secures some additional 
works or other benefits that are required to make a development proposal acceptable 
and which, cannot be secured by a planning condition.  They may prescribe the nature of 
the development, compensate for loss or damage created by the development; or 
mitigate a development’s impact. 
 
The legal mechanism for achieving planning obligations is set out in Section 106 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  
 
Where planning permission is granted for development that includes planning obligations, 
permission is granted subject to a 'Section 106 legal agreement', which ensures that the 
obligation is provided.  Planning permission is therefore not issued in these cases until that 
Section 106 has been completed.  An obligation is a charge on the land and is enforceable 
on successors in title to the land. 
 
 
 Advice on the use of planning obligations is provided in the National Planning Policy 
Framework and in the planning obligations section of the Government’s Planning Practice 
Guidance.  The advice makes it clear that the circumstances where obligations will be 
sought should form part of the development plan. Planning obligations should only be used 

Page 76



 25 

where it is not possible to address unacceptable impacts of the proposed development by 
imposing conditions.  Planning obligations should only be sought where they are: 
 

1. Necessary to make the proposed development acceptable in planning terms. 
2. Directly related to the proposed development. 
 
3. Fairly and reasonably related in terms of scale and kind to the proposed 

development;  
 
So, for example, under test 3 it would be reasonable that a developer be required to pay 
for the upgrading of infrastructure that serves the development, but the payment should be 
related to the degree to which the development would benefit from the upgrading.  
 
The obligations offered may be considered insufficient, and therefore the application may 
be considered unacceptable on legitimate planning grounds – its failure to satisfy policy 
requirements, or to appropriately mitigate its impact.  However, the NPPF requires that 
account should be taken of market conditions and that planning obligations should be 
sufficiently flexible to prevent planned development being stalled. 
 
The offer of planning obligations cannot make an unacceptable development 
proposal acceptable.  The form and extent of the obligation is assessed as part of the 
development proposal.  Occasionally, obligations are offered that go beyond what is 
strictly necessary or directly related to the development proposal.  In these circumstances 
the obligation can, so long as it has some relationship to the development proposed, be 
accepted.  However, it should not be given weight when assessing the merits of the 
development proposal. 
 
It follows, based on the published advice, that planning obligations should not be viewed 
as a general opportunity to gain some benefit unrelated to the development in return for a 
grant of planning permission. 
 
The Council will be updating its Supplementary Planning Document on planning 
obligations in the light of the new draft City Plan and central government advice in the new 
NPPF. It is most important for the integrity of the planning system and robust decision 
making that all obligations secured are dealt with in an open and impartial manner. 
 
Acceptable Planning Obligations 
 
These are examples of items normally accepted as planning obligations: 
 

(i) The environmental improvement of an area or building outside the development 
site. 
(ii) The dedication of land or facilities for public recreation, cultural or social use, e.g. 
areas of public open space, sports facilities or community uses. 
(iii) The provision of light industrial floorspace to be safeguarded in perpetuity for this 
use, and not to change to office use. (Both uses are normally in the B1 Use Class). 
(iv) The restoration of a listed building or one contributing to a conservation area, over 
and above the normal maintenance works expected from any property owner. 
(v) The provision of affordable housing. 
(vi) employment training/contribution. 

Page 77



 26 

 
 

 
By the time an application comes before Committee, negotiations will have been 
undertaken to secure the most appropriate development, and, where appropriate, benefits 
which are related to the development.  The weight to be given to these aspects will be 
addressed in the report.  The report will describe the type of obligation offered, and 
whether it is considered to satisfy the relevant planning policies. 
 
If you are not satisfied with obligations negotiated by officers you may wish to instruct us to 
negotiate for more, or different, benefits. However, it is essential that all negotiation for 
obligations have regard to Government advice and Development Plan policies.  The 
applicant has the right to appeal against non-determination and, as with appeals against 
refusal of planning permission, the City Council is at risk of an award of costs if it has 
acted unreasonably (see Section 8). The City Council should also be seen to be taking a 
consistent approach to the application of its policies. If either Members or officers are 
considered to have acted unlawfully or improperly, then there is the risk of an Ombudsman 
investigation resulting in costs against the City Council and/or individual Members.  In 
exceptional cases aggrieved third parties could seek a judicial review to have the Council’s 
decision quashed. 
 
Here are the key dos and don’ts. 
 

DO: 
 

 Ensure that the obligation is clearly related to the development 

 Ensure that the scale of the obligation reflects the scale of the 
development (it is unreasonable to expect wide scale environmental 
benefits in relation to a minor scheme) 

 Ensure that correspondence relating to the obligation is clear in terms 
of what is on offer and is available for public scrutiny 

 Ensure that the obligation is linked to an agreed programme of works 
for which there is a commitment to implement (e.g. the obligation 
should not be in the form of a financial contribution unspecified in 
purpose) 

 
 

DO NOT: 
 

 Deal with obligations in a way that is not easily accessible to public 
scrutiny 

 Accept an offer of a contribution of money to the Council for 
unspecified works  

 Approve an unacceptable scheme purely to achieve the obligations on 
offer 

 Insist upon obligations when a scheme is clearly acceptable without 
them - in such circumstances the benefits can be requested but not 
insisted upon 

 
 

Page 78



 27 

 
Portland Mews, Soho W1 

 
 
8.  APPEALS AND AWARDS OF COSTS  

 
An applicant can lodge an appeal to the Secretary of State against the Council’s decision 
to refuse planning permission or to impose conditions on a planning permission. The 
Council has a good record of defending the Council’s decisions and overall more than 69% 
of appeals are dismissed. 
 
In any appeal, an appellant may make a claim for costs against the Council.  Costs may be 
awarded where a party has behaved unreasonably, and this behaviour has directly caused 
another party to incur unnecessary or wasted expense in the appeal process.  
Unreasonable behaviour can be related either to the appeal process or the issues arising 
from the merits of the appeal and can include unreasonable refusal of planning 
permission, unjustified imposition of planning conditions, unreasonable issue of an 
enforcement notice or in relation to how the application or enforcement case was handled.  
A full or partial costs award may be made.   
 
The Council may also seek costs from appellants if they have acted unreasonably and 
caused the Council unnecessary expense.  For example, the Council may seek costs if an 
appellant pursues an appeal where it was clear that there was no chance of success.  
Costs may also be claimed if an appellant pulls out of an appeal at a late stage, where the 
Council has incurred significant expense in preparatory work. 
 
In addition, an award of costs may be made by an Inspector or the Secretary of State on 
their own initiative if they consider that one party has behaved unreasonably resulting in 
unnecessary expense and another party has not made an application for costs against that 
party. 
 
Advice on appeals and award of costs is available in the Appeals section of the 
Government’s Planning Practice Guidance. 

 

Page 79



 28 

  

Page 80



 29 

9.  LIST OF CONTACTS 
 
Deirdra Armsby  
Director of Place Shaping and Town Planning 
darmsby@westminster.gov.uk  
020 7641 4186 
 
Vincent Nally  
 Team Leader: South Team 
(Planning applications in SW1, SW3, SW7, WC2 & EC4)  
vnally@westminster.gov.uk  
020 7641 5947 
 
Steven Brandon 
Team Leader: Central Area Team 
(Planning applications in W1)  
StevenB@westminster.gov.uk  
020 7641 8541 
 
Amanda Coulson 
Team Leader: North Area Team 
(Planning applications in W2, W9, W10, W11, NW1, NW6 & NW8)  
acoulson@westminster.gov.uk 
020 7641 2875 
 
Roald Piper 
Team Leader:  Planning Enforcement Team (PET)  
rpiper@westminster.gov.uk 
020 7641 3250 
 
Doreen Horsley 
Case Support Manager 
dhorsley@westminster.gov.uk 
020 7641 2875  
 
Julian Tanton  
Head of Building Control  
jtanton@westminster.gov.uk 
020 7641 7016 
 
Jay Akbar  
Principal Planning Solicitor  
jakbar@westminster.gov.uk 
020 7641 2808  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81

mailto:acoulson@westminster.gov.uk
mailto:rpiper@westminster.gov.uk
mailto:dhorsley@westminster.gov.uk
mailto:jtanton@westminster.gov.uk
mailto:jakbar@westminster.gov.uk


 30 

Appendix 1- Background to Planning 
 
Development 
Planning permission is needed for “development”. Development is defined in the Planning 
Acts as: 'the carrying out of building, engineering, mining or other operations in, on, over or 
under land, or the making of any material change in the use of any buildings or other land.' 
Thus 'development' can take the form of either physical works to a building or land, or a 
change of use of the building or land.   
 
While this definition may seem relatively straightforward there are areas of uncertainty and 
the legislation gives further guidance. In particular, it makes clear that only works that 
affect the external appearance of a building require planning permission. Also, it allows 
people to use their homes for any purpose connected with its residential use. For example, 
this allows people to work from their homes without obtaining planning permission, but 
certain restrictions apply. The residential unit must not be divided into more than one unit 
and the main residential purpose and character of the dwelling must be maintained.  Until 
2014 demolition in a conservation area required conservation area consent, but this has 
been abolished, and demolition is dealt with by the planning permission. 
 
If someone is unsure whether their proposal constitutes development, they can apply to 
the Council for a formal determination. This is known as a Certificate of Lawfulness. 
 
To simplify the process further, the law allows a whole range of minor development to take 
place without the need for planning permission. These exemptions from planning control 
are set out in the General Permitted Development Order 1995, which sets out categories 
of ‘permitted development’, and the Use Classes Order 1987.  Both orders have been 
amended on several occasions since they were originally published. 
 
Permitted Development 
Some types of development may already be permitted nationally, and for these there is no 
need to apply for planning permission. Permitted development rights are, however, typically 
subject to conditions and limitations that control development impacts. If development 
proposed does not meet with the conditions and limitations of permitted development, then 
it is necessary to apply to the local planning authority for planning permission. We cannot 
apply the Council’s adopted planning policies in dealing with certificates of lawfulness, it is 
a straight forward assessment is the scheme lawful or not. 
 
Several new permitted development rights have been introduced in recent years to boost 
housing supply and enable appropriate development to take place more quickly. The 
Government introduced in May 2013  a number of prior approvals, these include larger 
householder extensions affording greater freedom for homeowners to improve and extend 
their properties without the need to apply for full planning permission (subject to appropriate 
engagement with neighbours).The Government also introduced the prior approval regime 
which covers a variety of different changes of use for example change of use of offices to 
residential use, shops/restaurants to residential use ,and temporary changes of use for a 2 
year period.  
 
The Government in the Chancellors Budget speech announced further changes to prior 
approval regime . An update of the most recent changes which came into force at the end 
of May 2019 have been circulated to Members. These changes made the larger householder 
extensions permanent, extending temporary changes of use from 2 to 3 years and now 

Page 82



 31 

includes some Class D1 uses and removing the permitted development rights for telephone 
boxes. 
 
There is growing opposition to the prior approval rights which allow offices to be converted 
into flats, as such schemes do not have to provide affordable housing, standard of 
accommodation and anti-social behaviour. Westminster has an Article 4 that covers offices 
inside CAZ which removes these permitted development rights. 
 
Article 4 Directions  
An Article 4 Direction is a direction under Article 4 of the General Permitted Development 
Order which enables the local planning authority to withdraw specified permitted 
development rights across a defined area. This would bring these types of development 
within the control of the planning process. There are several Article 4 Directions in place in 
Westminster – for example to limit basement development, prevent the change of use of 
shops (A1 Use Class) to financial and professional services (A2 Use Class) in the Core 
Central Activities Zone, prevent changes of use from offices to residential in CAZ and minor 
alterations in certain conservation areas/streets such as the Queen’s Park Estate. 
 
Use Classes 
The Use Class Order defines several groups of uses that are sufficiently similar in terms of 
their impact on the local environment that a change of use within a class, although it may 
be significant, does not need planning permission.  The major Use Classes which are 
commonly found in Westminster are: 
 

A1 SHOPS 
Chemist, grocer, bakers, butcher, hairdresser, 
ticket/travel agency, off licence, cold food take-
away (e.g. a sandwich shop), post office. 

A2 
FINANCIAL AND 
PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES 

Bank, building society, estate agent, betting 
shop. 

A3 
RESTAURANTS AND 

CAFÉS 
Businesses where the primary purpose is sale of 
food and drink for consumption on the premises. 

A4 
DRINKING 

ESTABLISHMENTS 
Pubs, bars, wine bars. 

A5 HOT FOOD TAKEAWAYS 
Businesses where the primary purpose is sale of 
hot food for consumption off the premises. 

B1 BUSINESS Office, light industrial, hi-tech studio. 

B2 GENERAL INDUSTRIAL General industrial processes 

B8 
STORAGE & 

DISTRIBUTION 
Warehousing or other storage, premises where 
goods are stored prior to distribution. 

C1 HOTELS Hotels, boarding houses but not hostels. 

C2 
RESIDENTIAL 
INSTITUTIONS 

Nursing home, residential school, hospital. 

C3 DWELLING HOUSES 
Flats, houses, or 6 people living together as a 
single household (including a household where 
care is provided for residents). 

D1 
NON-RESIDENTIAL 

INSTITUTIONS 

Medical/health centre, crèche, day nursery, 
school, museum, library, exhibition hall, public 
worship 

Page 83



 32 

D2 
ASSEMBLY AND 

LEISURE 
Cinema, concert hall, bingo hall, dance hall, 
swimming bath, gymnasium. 

 
There are also certain uses that are specifically excluded from any use class, such as 
casinos, night clubs, hostels, theatres, amusement arcades, petrol stations and car 
showrooms.  These are known as sui generis uses.  Wholesale showrooms (such as the 
clothing showrooms in East Marylebone) are also treated as sui generis uses. 
 
As already mentioned the Permitted Development Order allows some changes of use 
without the need for planning permission. For sui generis uses, there are no permitted 
development rights. 
 
Many activities do not fall neatly into a Use Class. For example, there is a ‘grey area’ 
between a Class A1 sandwich bar and a Class A3 café.  To fall within Class A1, the 
sandwich bar must sell primarily cold food for consumption off the premises.  However, a 
limited proportion of hot food sales, or a few tables and chairs on the premises would not 
necessarily take the use outside the retail Use Class. There are no hard and fast rules 
determining where to draw the line deciding whether a use is either A1 or A3 or indeed a 
mixed use falling into neither class.  Many other catering activities will be a mix of Classes 
A3, A4 and A5. Each proposal of this kind needs careful assessment, considering whether 
one activity is very dominant, with other activities being ‘ancillary’, or whether the use is a 
mixed one falling outside any use class. 
 
Thus, it is not always possible to control a change of use that may be viewed as 
undesirable. For example, the change of a local food shop or a post office to a coffee shop 
(as all uses fall within Class A1). 
 
Certificates of Lawful Development 
There are three types of Certificates of Lawful Development.  The first refers to 
development that has already been carried out without planning permission.  A Certificate 
of Lawfulness of Existing Development must be granted when, by the length of time the 
development has existed, it has become lawful. That is, the planning merits cannot be 
considered.  In the case of building works or residential uses, the development becomes 
lawful after four years.  For all other uses, the time is ten years 
 
In certain circumstances, it may not be clear whether planning permission is required for a 
development.  The Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Development enables an 
applicant to seek a formal view on the need for making a planning application.  The 
certificate would be granted where the development proposed does not require planning 
permission. Again, there is no assessment of the merit of the development proposed: the 
procedure is restricted to assessing only whether permission is required. 
 
There is also a certificate of lawfulness which relates to very minor works to listed 
buildings which will not affect the character of the listed building as a building of special 
architectural and historic interest and therefore does not require consent and not liable to 
any enforcement action. 
 
Works to Trees 
Consent is required for any works to trees covered by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO).  
In conservation areas, 6 weeks’ notice must be given to a local authority before works to 

Page 84



 33 

trees are undertaken, thus giving the City Council the opportunity to consider making a 
TPO. 
 
Neighbourhood Plans 
There is significant flexibility in what neighbourhood plans can include – they can involve, 
for example, just a few policies on design or retail uses or they can be comprehensive plans 
incorporating a diverse range of policies and site allocations for housing or other 
development. But they must relate to land use and must be consistent with strategic policies 
in the local plan. 
 
All neighbourhood plans, and orders are subject to an independent examination and a vote 
by the local community in a referendum. Only a neighbourhood plan or order that have been 
found to fit appropriately with local strategic and national policies and complying with the 
detailed legal conditions in the Localism Act 2011 and supporting regulations may be put to 
a referendum. Neighbourhoods with a substantial number of businesses (as many of ours 
do) are designated as “business areas”; here plans are subject to referendum among 
businesses as well as residents. 
  
When a neighbourhood plan has passed examination, achieved successful local support 
through referendum and is then formally ‘made’ by the Local Planning Authority, it will form 
part of the statutory ‘development plan’ which is used by the local planning authority in 
deciding planning applications. This status, the community-led nature of neighbourhood 
planning and extra funding that the community has a degree of influence over through the 
community infrastructure levy (see below) are real incentives for communities to get 
involved.  
 
Community Infrastructure Levy 
The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a charge on development to help fund 
infrastructure which the council, local community and neighbourhoods require to help 
accommodate new growth from development.  
The CIL charge is based on the size, location and type of development (although there are 
exemptions granted for certain categories of development). Westminster’s CIL Charging 
Schedule is shown below; rates are per square metre for developments where there is an 
increase of new build floorspace of 100 sq.m or more: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Use 
Area 

Prime Core Fringe 

Residential (including all residential ‘C’ use classes) £550 £400 £200 

Commercial (offices; hotels, nightclubs and casinos; 
retail (all ‘A’ use classes and sui generis retail) 

£200 £150 £50 

All other uses Nil 

 
The Council has a detailed governance arrangement to determine how monies collected 
under CIL will be spent. Under the CIL Regulations there are requirements to divide CIL 
revenue into “portions”:  
 

Page 85



 34 

 
 

Portion Percentage of receipts Process 

City CIL 
Strategic 
Portion 

70 - 80% 

Spend decided by Council according to its 
strategic infrastructure priorities. Spend can be 
anywhere within Westminster - or outside – 
providing the infrastructure funded is required 
to support development in Westminster. 

Neighbourhood 
Portion  
 
 

Currently 15% of CIL 
collected in respect of 
development in each 
neighbourhood capped at 
£100 per council tax 
dwelling. This increases 
to 25% (uncapped) in 
places where a 
neighbourhood plan is 
in place. 

Queen’s Park: neighbourhood portion passed 
to the Community Council who spend it.  
 
Elsewhere: funding retained by the Council 
and spent by it in agreement with the 
neighbourhood communities in which 
development paying a CIL has taken place.  

CIL 
Administrative 
Expenses 
Portion 

5% of CIL collected  

Spend applied to costs of administrative 
expenses for collection and enforcement in line 
with legal restrictions on the use of this 
funding. (NB 4% of the Mayoral CIL collected 
by the council can also be retained for this 
purpose).  

 
The Mayor’s Community Infrastructure Levy was introduced in 2012 to help finance the 
Elizabeth line (formerly Crossrail) and is a charge of £80 per square metre on qualifying 
development in Westminster. Medical, education and affordable housing floorspace is 
exempt from the Mayoral CIL, all other net floorspace is liable.  
 
Liability to pay CIL arises when planning permission is granted – at which point the council 
issues a “liability notice” (for this reason the final amount payable is not formally worked out 
until after permission is granted; we have a CIL Calculator on the council website to help 
developers work out how much they are likely to have to pay). It is paid within 90 days of 
development commencing, when a “demand notice” is issued.  
 
The amount of money raised by CIL per year will fluctuate depending on the development 
cycle/economic conditions, and it is paid on commencement, and not on the grant of 
permission. 
 

Page 86



  
 

 
Planning & City Development Committee 

Date: 7 November 2019 
  
Classification: General Release 
  
Title: Draft London Plan Update 
  
Report of: Director of Place Shaping and Town Planning 
  
Financial Summary: The implications will be managed within existing 
resources. 
  
Report Author and Contact Details: Oliver Gibson (ogibson@westminster.gov.uk/ 020 7641 
2680) 
 
 
1.  Executive Summary  
  
1.1 This report provides an update on the draft London Plan, which is expected to be 

adopted in February/ March 2020. Following adoption the draft London Plan will form 
part of the development plan for Westminster and will be a significant material 
consideration in the assessment of planning applications within the City. Where current 
UDP and City Plan policies are in conflict with the new London Plan, greater weight 
would be attributable to the London Plan as it would be the more recently adopted 
policy document. 
 

1.2 The draft London Plan was subject to public consultation between December 2017 and 
March 2018. Following this consultation period and subsequent minor modifications to 
the consultation draft, the draft London Plan was subject of an Examination in Public 
(EiP) by a Panel of three Inspectors between December 2018 and May 2019. The 
Panel’s report setting out their findings from the EiP, including any recommended 
amendments to the draft plan, was published on 8 October 2019 (Appendix 1). The 
Panel report Subject to the content of the Panel’s report finds the draft London Plan to 
be sound, subject to a number of modifications. It is now for the Mayor to consider the 
modifications recommended by the Inspectors and submit his response justifying his 
approach and modified finalised version of the draft London Plan to the Secretary of 
State, who then has 6 weeks to consider whether to approve it or to intervene and issue 
a holding direction to prevent the Plan being adopted. These steps are likely to take a 
number of months and the adoption of the new London Plan is expected in February/ 
March 2020. 
 

1.3 This report considers the key policy areas that are likely to have an impact on planning 
application decision making in Westminster when the new London Plan is adopted, 
particularly in the interim period prior to the adoption of Westminster’s draft City Plan 
2019-2040. The report is based on the findings of the Inspectors Panel report and the 
consolidated version of the draft London Plan was published in July 2019 (Appendix 
2), post completion of the EiP. 

Page 87

Agenda Item 6



 

 

1.4 The draft London Plan is a substantial document and the summary in this report is not 
intended to be an exhaustive. Rather, it focuses on the following policy areas which are 
common themes and considerations which often arise when assessing development 
proposals in Westminster: 
 

 Affordable Housing and Viability 

 Housing on Small Sites 

 Development Density 

 Heritage and Culture 

 Car Parking 

 Town Centres 
 
1.5 In summary, when adopted with amendments incorporated to address the Inspectors 

Panel report recommendations, the draft London Plan should provide a more 
comprehensive and up to date suite of policies with which to manage development 
within Westminster in combination with the current UDP and City Plan policies. 
However, there are a number of policies where, due to the strategic nature of the 
document, they lack area specific application within the Westminster context. However, 
the policies being developed within the draft City Plan will provide this complementary 
set of spatial policies that will enable the strategic level policies within the draft London 
Plan to be appropriately applied to development within different areas within 
Westminster.  

 
2.  Recommendation  
  
2.1 Members are asked to note the content of this report. 
  
3.        Background  
  
3.1  The currently adopted London Plan was initially adopted in 2011 and has been updated 

on a number of occasions since, most recently in March 2016 (‘The London Plan 
‘Consolidated with Alternations Since 2011’). The Mayor launched a review of the 
current London Plan in 2015/16 with the stated aim to ensure that the London Plan 
better reflects the higher population growth in London than was projected in 2011. The 
draft new London Plan seeks to redefine the strategies and philosophy that are used 
to successfully accommodate the envisaged level of growth over the draft plan period. 

 
3.2 As set out in greater detail in paragraph 1.2, the draft new London Plan was subject to 

public consultation between in late 2017/ early 2018 and was subsequently subject to 
an Examination in Public (EiP) between December 2018 and May 2019. The 
Inspectors’ Panel report setting out the findings of the EiP and their recommendations 
was published on 8 October 2019. Adoption of the draft London Plan is expected by 
February/ March 2020. 

 
3.3 The City Council is also concurrently reviewing its City Plan to produce a new City Plan 

that will replace the current local development plan documents, which are the 2007 
Unitary Development Plan and the 2016 City Plan. The draft City Plan was the subject 
of Regulation 19 public consultation during June and July 2019, but has yet to be the 
subject of an Examination in Public. The Plan will be submitted to the Secretary of State 
in late Autumn subject to Full Council Approval. It is currently expected that the City 
Plan EiP will take place in early part of 2020 with adoption of a new City Plan expected 
to follow soon after. Policies within the new City Plan must be found to be in general 
conformity with the new London Plan to be found sound. 

Page 88



 

 
4.  Considerations  
 

Affordable Housing and Viability 
 
4.1 The threshold approach to affordable housing provision, as introduced in the Mayor’s 

2017 Affordable Housing and Viability Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG), is 
included in the draft London Plan. The draft London Plan (Policies H5 and H6) sets a 
general 35% affordable housing threshold, as was included in the 2017 SPG, and a 
50% threshold for development on public sector land, where there is no portfolio 
agreement with the Mayor, is also carried over in to the draft policy. The 35% affordable 
housing threshold, or 50% for public sector land, (i.e. the ‘Fast Track Route’) exempts 
developers from submitting viability assessments at application stage, if they meet or 
exceed the relevant level of affordable housing and other requirements. The 35%/50% 
threshold for the ‘Fast Track’ approach will remain until 2021, at which time the 
threshold levels will be monitored and reviewed by the Mayor. Below this threshold, 
individual developments will need to be viability tested. The draft London Plan also 
confirms the approach of requiring early and late stage viability reviews via S106 
agreements on schemes falling below the fast track threshold, to ensure timely delivery 
of schemes on site and to secure any uplift viability post permission being granted is 
captured as additional affordable housing provision, either on site or as a payment in 
lieu. 
 

4.2 The draft London Plan introduces greater flexibility to the affordable housing tenure that 
can be provided (Policy H7) with a minimum of 30% low cost rented homes (either 
London Affordable Rent or Social Rent), a minimum of 30% intermediate products 
(including London Living Rent and London Shared ownership), with the remaining 40% 
determined by the borough as low cost rented homes or intermediate products, based 
on identified local need. This will enable affordable housing tenure mixes to respond 
more effectively to both local affordable housing need and the overall viability of 
development on a particular site. 
 

4.3 The draft London Plan also encourages a wider variety of housing products such as 
‘Build to Rent’ developments (Policy H13), where the affordable housing element of the 
schemes can be provided as ‘discounted market rent’ units, allowing developers to 
provide affordable housing without needing to transfer the affordable housing units to 
a specialist affordable housing provider. This may assist some major long-term land 
owners within the City to provide on-site affordable housing, whereas they may have 
previously sought to provide affordable housing in the form of a payment in lieu of on-
site provision. 

 
4.4 Policy DF1 states that planning obligations necessary to meet the policies in the draft 

London Plan should be taken into account when developing proposals and acquiring 
land. This is on the basis that a city-wide strategic viability assessment, the London 
Plan Viability Study (LPVS) was carried out as part of the evidence base for the draft 
London Plan. The policy states that ‘viability testing should normally only be undertaken 
on a site-specific basis where there are clear circumstances creating barriers to 
delivery’. However, the Inspectors recommend that the Mayor should modify this policy 
‘to make it clear that the requirements relating to site-specific viability assessments only 
apply where relevant policies in local plans are up to date’, including local viability 
assessments. The Inspectors made this recommendation on the basis that they had 
concerns that the strategic-level viability assessment carried out in support of the draft 
London Plan was not sufficiently capable of taking account of locally specific evidence 
that may legitimately impact upon development viability. The need for an up to date 
local plan policy based on local viability evidence maintains the Mayors aim to limit the 

Page 89



 

use of site specific viability assessments, whilst ensuring this is only where more 
localised viability testing has taken place and been incorporated into the development 
plans of individual boroughs. 
 

4.5 Overall the affordable housing policies in the draft London Plan represent an evolution 
and consolidation of the interpretation of the previous London Plan policies, as set out 
in the Mayors August 2017 Affordable Housing and Viability SPG. However, whilst the 
approach does not represent a significant change from the 2017 SPG, its introduction 
in to the policy wording within the London Plan will increase the material weight 
attributable to it. The 50% threshold for public sector land is the most challenging 
aspect of the policy and will have an impact on the delivery of Council’s own 
developments, particularly on larger sites that are referable to the Mayor, although the 
Mayor has signed a Statement of Common Ground that sets out that he is content with 
the draft City Plan policy, which requires 50% affordable housing on public land where 
this is viable. 

 
4.6 Even incorporating the amendments recommended in the Inspectors Panel report, 

Policy DF1 the draft London Plan is likely to result in a reduction in site specific viability 
reports following the adoption of a complementary local plan policy as part of the new 
City Plan. However, within a complex urban environment such as Westminster, it is 
likely that applicants will continue to assert that there are specific issues on particular 
sites that would prevent delivery in accordance with all relevant development plan 
policies. 

 
Housing Delivery and Housing on Small Sites 

 
4.7 The draft London Plan places greater onus on small sites (up to 25 units on sites up to 

0.25ha) to contribute to increased housing supply (policy H2 and H2A). The draft plan’s 
expectation is that 52% of the overall 10 year housing target (of 10,100 homes) for 
Westminster will be delivered on small sites. To achieve this target, the draft plan 
introduces a presumption in favour of small housing development involving (1) the infill 
of vacant or underused brownfield sites; (2) residential conversions, redevelopment, 
extensions of houses and/or ancillary residential buildings or infill development within 
the curtilage of house, where it is within PTALs 3-6 or 800m distance of a station or 
town centre boundary; or (3) the redevelopment or upward extension of flats, non-
residential buildings and residential garages. Qualifications to this ‘presumption in 
favour’ are set out in the policy and they include that the presumption does not apply 
where a development would affect a designated heritage asset, or it setting, or in the 
case of proposals for tall buildings. 

 
4.8 However, in their Panel report the Inspectors have identified that the reliance on small 

sites to deliver such a large proportion of the overall housing delivery target is ‘neither 
justified nor deliverable’. To address this the Inspectors advise that the target for the 
development of small sites should be significantly reduced from 245,730 to 119,250 
residential units across London over ten years. This would have the effect of reducing 
the overall ten-year housing target from 649,350 to 522,850 new residential units. 
Annually this would result in the target for housing delivery across London being 52,285 
units, which is well below the 66,000 new units identified to meet annual need. To 
address this shortfall the Inspectors recommend that a review of green belt around 
London is undertaken and the potential for local authorities in the wider South East to 
accommodate this growth is further explored. However, the Inspectors have taken a 
pragmatic approach to this issue. They recognise that such further work would take 
time to undertake and conclude that it is better to proceed on the basis of an adopted 
plan and allow a review of the green belt to be undertaken at a later date to inform the 
next iteration of the London Plan.   

Page 90



 

 
4.9 The ‘small sites’ policy could have put increased pressure on the provision of higher 

density housing on small sites. However, if the findings of the Panel report are accepted 
by the Mayor, the pressure this policy places on such sites will be significantly reduced.  
Furthermore, development of small sites in Westminster is already relatively common 
place and therefore well catered for in terms of the existing suite of policies in both the 
adopted and emerging local development plan documents (i.e. the UDP and 2016 City 
Plan and the draft new City Plan). Additionally, the significant number of listed buildings 
and conservations across much of the City mean that the presumption in favour will not 
apply to many sites. There will though be some small sites, particularly in the north of 
the City outside of conservation areas, where there will be some increased pressure to 
support redevelopment at a density that is higher than may have historically been 
considered acceptable.  

 
4.10 The new London Plan encourages boroughs to consider introducing affordable housing 

requirements in the form of payments in lieu of on-site provision for schemes on small 
sites of 9 units or less, but this is reliant on the introduction of a policy within a boroughs 
local plan. However, this approach could threaten the viability of redeveloping smaller 
sites in Westminster. Such a policy was not included in the consultation draft version 
of the City Plan. 

 
4.11 Considering housing delivery across all sites, the Panel report recommendation to 

reduce the original ambitious housing delivery target across London from 649,350 to 
522,850 new residential units over 10 years will not have a significant impact on 
Westminster as the draft City Plan aims to meet the London Plan target over the lifetime 
of the plan (up to 2040), but with the housing target set by the standard methodology 
for the first 10 years. As such, there be a minor impact on the annual housing delivery 
target set for Westminster in the later period of the plan, but not the initial 10 year 
period. 

  
Development Density 

 
4.12 Historically appropriate densities for development of sites in different locations within 

the City have been set out in a density matrix, focused on public transport accessibility 
levels. The draft London Plan moves away from this approach towards a design-led 
approach (Policies D1A and D1B), although it maintains the link between densities and 
public transport accessibility levels. The criteria for determining density are now to be 
focused on the appropriateness of the design of a development, the quality of the 
environment provided for users/ occupiers of a development, its response to local 
context and the impact on the amenity of neighbours. 

 
4.13 It is likely that the new design-led approach to determining the appropriate site capacity 

means that developers will more frequently seek to make site specific cases for their 
chosen densities on the basis that they consider the scheme to deliver good design 
quality against the criteria set out in the policy. This could potentially lead to more 
protracted negotiations at pre-application stage on some sites. However, it is noted that 
Policy D1B(C) sets out that ‘where development parameters for allocated sites have 
been set out in a Development Plan, development proposals that do not accord with 
the site capacity in a site allocation can be refused for this reason’. Westminster’s draft 
City Plan includes site allocations with indicative housing delivery figures, which are to 
be fully set out in a separate Development Plan Document which will be subject to its 
own Examination in Public following adoption of the City Plan. Accordingly, the site 
capacities on strategic sites across the City will continue to be capable of strategically 
controlled by the City Council, despite the shift in the draft London Plan to a more 
design focused approach to development density.   

Page 91



 

 
Tall Buildings 

 
4.14 The tall buildings policy (Policy D8) provides greater direction on the location of tall 

buildings, requiring boroughs to identify locations where tall buildings are appropriate 
within their development plans and Westminster’s draft City Plan will do this. The draft 
London Plan policy for tall buildings introduces a context based definition for tall 
buildings, allowing the definition of what comprises a tall building to be flexed across 
London responding to the prevailing townscape context. Again Westminster’s draft City 
Plan includes policy wording to apply the contextual approach to tall buildings in the 
London Plan to the Westminster context. 

 
4.15 The new tall buildings policy also includes a much greater range of impact based 

assessment criteria for proposals for tall buildings. The policy includes assessment 
criteria relating to the visual impact, functional impact, environmental impact and 
cumulative impact. Overall the policy will provide the City Council and other boroughs 
with a more rigorous policy tool, in combination with emerging draft City Plan policies, 
to ensure that proposals for tall buildings are appropriately located and are designed 
to minimise impacts in all regards. 

 
Heritage and Culture 

 
4.16 The draft London Plan combines heritage and culture policies in a single chapter to 

promote their considerable economic, environmental and social value, both in isolation 
and when combined.  
 

4.17 The ‘Agent of Change’ principle, which was introduced in the 2018 version of the NPPF 
(i.e. placing the responsibility for mitigating impacts from existing noise and other 
nuisance-generating activities or uses on the proposed new noise-sensitive 
development), is formalised in Policy D12 and will provide more protection to noise 
generating cultural venues and entertainment uses by placing the responsibility for 
mitigating impacts from existing noise generating activities on the proposed new noise 
sensitive development.  
 

4.18 Policy HC7 enhances the protection afforded to public houses relative to the current 
London Plan. The policy broadens the criteria under which public houses are afforded 
protection with the policy seeking to prevent the loss of public houses that have a 
heritage, economic, social or cultural value to local communities. Part B of the Policy 
specifically directs that ‘Applications that propose the loss of public houses with 
heritage, cultural, economic or social value should be refused unless there is 
authoritative marketing evidence (for a period of 24 months) that demonstrates that 
there is no realistic prospect of the building being used as a pub in the foreseeable 
future’. The London Plan recognises the harm that the loss of public houses can do, 
not only to the night time economy, but also the social fabric, historic and cultural 
interest of an area. The policy text also sets out that boroughs should resist proposals 
for redevelopment of associated accommodation, facilities or development within the 
curtilage of the public house that would compromise the operation or viability of a public 
house.  

 
Car Parking 
 

4.19 The draft London Plan brings the ‘Healthy Streets Approach’ (described as being 
‘based on evidence of what is needed to create a healthy, inclusive environment in 
which people choose to walk, cycle and use public transport’) in to the transport policies 
within the plan. The intention is to improve health and reduce health inequalities, while 

Page 92



 

also increasing levels of walking, cycling and public transport use towards a target of 
80% of all trips by 2041. The Healthy Streets Approach also underpins the aspiration 
to achieve the target of zero carbon by 2050. Part of the Health Streets Approach is the 
promotion of car free development in areas with high public transport accessibility.  
 

4.20 Policy T6 introduces maximum parking standards for different types of development. 
For residential developments, the expectation is that schemes will not provide any 
parking spaces in the CAZ, Inner London Opportunity Areas, Metropolitan and Major 
Town Centres, and all areas of PTAL 5-6 (plus PTAL 4 in Inner London). The policy 
encourages the provision of on-street parking permit restrictions by boroughs as part 
of the implementation of car free development. The focus on car free development in 
the areas identified above will mean that the Mayor will expect almost all development 
in Westminster to be car-free. The draft City Plan seeks to introduce an area based car 
free policy, which also recognises high existing on-street parking stress in Zones B and 
D. The conformity of this Policy in the draft City Plan with the draft London Plan will be 
a key consideration at the future Examination in Public of the draft City Plan; albeit the 
Mayor and TfL have signed a statement of common ground to confirm that they do not 
consider parking permit restrictions to form part of the conformity objection. 

 
Town Centres 
 

4.21 Policies SD6 to SD9 respond to changes in the viability and function of high street/ 
town centre retail uses over the last decade and recognises the need for town centres 
to adapt in a planned way to provide a more diverse range of uses than has historically 
been the case, to ensure they continue to meet the needs of their local communities.  
 

4.22 The draft London Plan also recognises that town centres are typically well connected 
and consequently they are identified as locations for growth to a greater extent than 
was the case in the currently adopted London Plan. Town centres are specifically 
identified as locations for focusing office growth outside the Central Activities Zone.  
 

4.23 The policy is likely to see a more flexible approach to retail and other complimentary 
  town centre uses within town centres, particularly toward the periphery of centres in 

future when making planning decisions. This approach is already reflected in the draft 
City Plan policies. The increased emphasis on town centres as locations for growth is 
likely to result in an increase in proposals for office development in town centres outside 
the CAZ, which historically have not been identified as appropriate locations for office 
growth in Westminster. A careful approach will need to be taken when applying this 
policy to ensure that office growth within town centres does not significantly reduce the 
potential for these highly connected locations to contribute to delivering housing 
growth, as this could undermine the achievement of City Council’s own ambitious 
housing target, as set out in the draft City Plan.  

 
 Other Notable Panel Report Recommendations 
 
4.24 As noted in paragraph 1.4, the draft London Plan is a substantial document, extending 

to over 500 pages. The Inspectors Panel report is critical of this approach and suggests 
the Mayor should ‘consider setting out a more concise spatial development strategy, 
focused on strategic outcomes rather than detailed means of implementation, when the 
plan is next replaced’. The Panel report notes that the document's ‘length and 
complexity raise a number of significant issues about the fundamental role and purpose 
of a spatial development strategy in a three tiered plan-led system’. 

 
4.25 The Inspectors raised concerns in a number of regards in terms of the consistency of 

the draft London Plan with national policy. The Inspectors specifically raised objection 

Page 93



 

to the inclusion of policies that oppose expansion of Heathrow and other airports and 
places ‘a blanket restriction on the exploration, appraisal or production of shale gas via 
hydraulic fracturing within London’. The Inspectors recommend that both policies are 
deleted. 

 
5.  Financial Implications  
  
5.1  The implications will be managed within existing resources. 
  
6.  Legal Implications  
  
6.1  None. 
  
7.  Conclusion  
  
7.1     Members are asked to note the content of this report and the implications that the 

emerging policies in the draft London Plan may have for future planning decision 
making in Westminster. 

  
 
 

 
If you have any questions about this report, or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers, please contact: Oliver Gibson 
(ogibson@westminster.gov.uk / 020 7641 2680). 
 

 

Background Papers:  

1. Report of the Examination in Public of the London Plan 2019 (online link only due to size 

of document): 

https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/london_plan_report_2019_final.pdf 

2. Draft London Plan – Consolidated Changes Version (July 2019) (online link only due to 

size of document): https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/draft_london_plan_-

_consolidated_changes_version_-_clean_july_2019.pdf 

 

Page 94

https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/london_plan_report_2019_final.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/draft_london_plan_-_consolidated_changes_version_-_clean_july_2019.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/draft_london_plan_-_consolidated_changes_version_-_clean_july_2019.pdf


 
 

 

Planning & City Development Committee 
 
Date: 7 November 2019 

Classification: For General Release 

Title: Establishment of Planning Applications Sub-
Committee (3) 

Wards Affected: N/A 

Financial Summary: There are no financial implications 

Report of:  Head of Committee and Governance Services 

 
1. Executive Summary 

1.1 This report seeks approval from the Committee to establish a further Planning 
Applications Sub-Committee - Planning Applications Sub-Committee (3) from 1 
January 2020. The terms of reference for the new Sub-Committee are set out in 
Section 24 of the Constitution and are attached to this report as Appendix A. 

2. Recommendations  

2.1     That the Planning & City Development Committee be recommended to agree the 
establishment of a Planning Application Sub-Committee (3) from 1 January 2020. 

2.2 That the Terms of Reference for the existing Planning Applications Sub-
Committees (as attached) be applied to Planning Application Sub-Committee (3). 
Subject to agreement of 2.1 above, the terms of reference in the constitution will 
be updated to reflect the additional sub-committee.  

3. Reason for Decision  

3.1  The additional Planning Applications Sub-Committee will ensure a greater 
degree of flexibility in the planning decision making process. It will ensure that 
the current significant workload for the existing Sub-Committees will be reduced. 
This will allow the Sub-Committees to consider less items but, in more detail, 
when making decisions.  

3.2 The establishment of the additional Sub-Committee is also intended to minimise 
occurrences where Sub-Committee Members deliberate on items located in their 

Page 95

Agenda Item 7



 
 

wards. The effect of this is to reduce the risk of Members impartiality being seen 
to be compromised when making a decision. 

3.3 The Planning (Major) Applications Sub-Committee will comprise of each minor 
Sub Committee Chairman and therefore it would be appropriate to have three 
Sub-Committees instead of two.   

4. Proportionality  

4.1 Seats on committees and sub-committees must be allocated in accordance with 
the four principles of proportionality contained in sections 15, 16 and 17 of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989. When making appointments, 
committees (in appointing sub-committees) have a duty to give effect to the 
following principles, as far as is reasonably practicable:  

(i)  That not all the seats on a committee or sub-committee are allocated to 
the same political group.  

(ii)  That the majority group must have the majority of seats on each 
committee or sub-committee.  

(iii)  Subject to (i) and (ii) above, it must be ensured that the proportion of each 
political group’s seats of the total number of seats on ‘ordinary 
committees’ reflects as closely as possible their proportion of seats on full 
council.  

(iv)  Subject to (i) to (iii) above, the proportion of each political group’s seats on 
each committee and sub-committee reflects as closely as possible their 
proportion of seats on full council.  

Note: This rule applies to all committees, sub-committees and joint 
committees, except for licensing committee and community councils. 

5 Role and Membership of the Sub-Committee 

5.1 The committee is invited to note the roles and functions of the Planning Sub-
committees as set out in Appendix 1. The Planning Applications Sub-Committees 
1 and 2 were established with a size of 4 seats and a composition of 3 Majority 
Members and 1 Minority Member. It is recommended that the same 
arrangements are established for the proposed Sub-Committee 3. The Sub-
Committee will be invited to appoint a Chair at its first meeting. 

5.2 All members who are appointed to sit on the Planning Applications Sub-
Committees are given a position on the Planning & City Development 
Committee. Therefore, if the recommendations are agreed the membership of 
the Planning & City Development Committee will increase from 14 to 15 
members. 

Page 96



 
 

 

6. Financial Implication 

6.1 The 2019-2020 Members’ Allowances Scheme was budgeted on the basis of 
paying Special Responsibility Allowances (SRAs) to members of four Planning 
Application Sub-Committees (Major and 1, 2 & 3), each with their own 
memberships. Therefore, the establishment of Planning Applications Sub-
Committee (3) and the payment of SRAs to these members will not have an 
adverse impact on the budgeted scheme. 

7 Legal Implications 

7.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

8. Consultation 

8.1 The Party Whips have been consulted and are content with the proposals to 
establish a Planning Application Sub-Committee (3).  

 

If you have any queries about this Report or wish to inspect any of the 
Background Papers please contact Reuben Segal : 7641 3160 

Email: rsegal@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 None 
 
 

Page 97

mailto:rsegal@westminster.gov.uk


 

          Appendix A  
 
PLANNING APPLICATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE (X 3)  
 
The Planning (Major Applications) Sub-Committee consists of 6 members of the 
Council (4 Majority Party Members and 2 Minority Party Members).  
 
Planning Sub Committees 1-2 consist of 4 Members of the Council (3 Majority 
Party Members and 1 Minority Party Member)  
  
The Committee is responsible, if asked, for advising the Cabinet or the Cabinet 
Member for Place Shaping and Planning on planning policy matters which are 
the domain of the executive.  
  
TERMS OF REFERENCE  
  
(1) The making and issuing within the policy context determined by the Council, 
of decisions on applications for permission, notices and deposit of plans under 
the Planning Acts, the Building Act 1984, the London Building Acts, the London 
Squares Preservation Act 1931 and any Local Act requiring decisions relating to 
planning and building control functions, to the extent that these are Non-
Executive functions.  
 
(2) To review planning briefs and recommend any changes to the Cabinet 
Member for Place Shaping and Planning for consideration.  
  
(3) Authorisation of  
  
(a) agreements and undertakings under Section 106 and 299A of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, Section 16 of the Greater London Council (General 
Powers) Act 1974, Section 33 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1972 and where required in connection with planning 
applications, Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980, and the release of such 
obligations;  
  
(b) notices, orders (including the confirmation of) Tree Preservation Orders, 
Directions Certificates and Grants under the Planning Acts;  
  
(c) rights of entry under the Planning Acts, the Building Act 1984, the London 
Building Acts and any such rights conferred by other legislation where incidental 
to functions under these Acts;  
  
(d) the carrying out of works and the recovery of costs in default of compliance 
with Notices issued or served under the Planning Acts London Building Acts and 
Building Act 1984;   
  

Page 98



 
 

(4) Within the policy context determined by the Council and the Cabinet Member 
for Place Shaping and Planning, to exercise the functions of the Council under 
the Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations.  
  
(5) To approve highway works, highway amenities, Highways matters relating to 
approved development, the dedication of land for highway purposes and the 
stopping up or diversion of highways and any necessary traffic orders in 
connection with planning applications or the implementation of permissions 
resulting from such applications subject to the whole of any cost involved being 
payable by developers and secured by Agreement.  
  
(6) To determine matters referred by officers under Part 8 (High Hedges) of the 
Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003. 

 

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	4 UPDATE ON THE PLANNING REVIEW
	Appendix 1 - Planning Applications Sub Committee Procedure Rules (PCD Committee Planning Review Report)
	Appendix 2 - PCD Report 17 January 2019 (PCD Committee Planning Review Report)
	Appendix 3 - PCD Report 17 January 2019 Minutes (PCD Committee Planning Review Report)
	Appendix 4 - PCD Report 20 June 2019 (Planning Review Update)

	5 REVISED GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS MAKING PLANNING DECISIONS
	Planning Members Handbook - 30 Oct 2019 PM

	6 DRAFT LONDON PLAN UPDATE
	7 ESTABLISHMENT OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE (3)

